
 

 
1 
 

  
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING – AGENDA 

August 12, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 
 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
A.  10U Basketball Georgia Recreation and Park Association State Champions 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. Millage Rate Public Hearing 

 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. City Council Meeting Minutes of July 15, 2024 

 
B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of July 15, 2024 

 
C. Millage Rate Public Hearing Minutes of July 22, 2024 

 
D. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for Touch-a-Truck on February 

22, 2025 
 

E. Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk 
Bonds for Clear Lake, Phase 1A, Subject to City Attorney Approval 
 

F. Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk 
Bonds for Clear Lake, Phase 1B, Subject to City Attorney Approval 
 

VIII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
 
A. Ordinance O2024-07.B – To Amend Chapter 46 – Fire Prevention and 

Protection; Sections 7, 8, 9 (Second Reading) 
 

B. Proclamation for National Health Center Week 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 



  

2 

A. Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse, Showroom, and Office at 1323 East 
US Highway 80 (Public Hearing, Action) 
 

B. Variance Request for Pooler Crossroads, Lot 5, Clear Lake Reserve, Phase 1 
(Clear Lake Vista) Parking Requirements (Public Hearing, Action) 
 

C. Encroachment and Construction Agreement with TTRES at POOLER GA, LLC 
 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 



 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 City of Pooler, Georgia 
Special Called Meeting of the Mayor & Council 

 
 

A Special Called Meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Pooler, Georgia shall be 
held on Monday, August 12, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. at Pooler City Hall located at 100 US 
Highway 80 SW, Pooler, Georgia, 31322 in place of the canceled Monday, August 5, 2024 
meeting. The agenda will be continued from the August 5, 2024 meeting, including the 
Millage Rate Public Hearing. Members of the public are invited to attend.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Real & Personal 1,501,832,500          1,669,252,592          1,722,654,090          2,344,874,316          2,720,465,525          3,206,068,309         

Motor Vehicles 10,934,240                9,551,720  7,662,850  6,737,070  7,461,720  7,208,810 

Mobile Homes 4,336,858  3,702,212  3,725,166  4,455,704  4,876,486  4,377,166 

Timber ‐ 100% 14,846  288,255  ‐  190,000  190,000  ‐ 

Heavy Duty Equipment 2,762,316  3,123,354  3,330,751  2,683,271  3,463,367  3,796,538 

Gross Digest 1,519,880,760          1,685,918,133          1,737,372,857          2,358,940,361          2,736,457,098          3,221,450,823         

Less M& O Exemptions 74,057,869                74,127,367                89,696,383                167,127,380              243,394,349              317,572,432             

Net M & O Digest 1,445,822,891          1,611,790,766          1,647,676,474          2,191,812,981          2,493,062,749          2,903,878,391         

State Forest Land Assistance 

Grant Value

Adjusted Net M&O Digest 1,445,822,891          1,611,790,766          1,647,676,474          2,191,812,981          2,493,062,749          2,903,878,391         

Gross M&O Millage 8.583  8.087  9.077  8.036  7.909  7.758 

Less Rollback (LOST) 4.829  4.436  4.480  3.773  4.129  3.978 

Net M&O Millage 3.754  3.651  4.597  4.263  3.780  3.780 

Total City Taxes Levied 5,427,619  5,884,648  7,574,369  9,343,699  9,423,777  10,976,660               

Net Taxes $ Increase 457,029  1,689,721  1,769,330  80,078  1,552,883 

Net Taxes % Increase 8.42% 28.71% 23.36% 0.86% 16.48%

PUBLIC NOTICE

The City of Pooler does hereby announce that the 2024 millage rate will be set at a meeting to be held at City Hall on August 12 

2024 at 6:00pm and pursuant to the requirements of O.C.G.A. Section 48‐5‐32 does hereby publish the following presentation of 

the current year's tax digest and levy, along with the history of the tax digest and levy for the past five years.

CURRENT 2024 TAX DIGEST AND 5 YEAR HISTORY OF LEVY

ProSystems Engagement/2023 Millage Rate/Current Tax Digest and Five Year History 7/10/2024 4:24 PM



COUNTY TAXING JURISDICTION

REASSESSMENT OF OTHER CHANGES

EXISTING REAL PROP TO TAXABLE DIGEST

2,200,850,385 183,212,288 231,399,060 2,615,461,733

519,615,140 70,991,436 590,606,576

 MOTOR VEHICLES 7,461,720 -252,910 7,208,810

 MOBILE HOMES 4,876,486 -499,320 4,377,166

 TIMBER -100% 190,000 -190,000 0

 HEAVY DUTY EQUIP 3,463,367 333,171 3,796,538

 GROSS DIGEST 2,736,457,098 183,212,288 301,781,437 3,221,450,823

 EXEMPTIONS 243,394,349 71,716,129 2,461,954 317,572,432

 NET DIGEST 2,493,062,749 111,496,159 299,319,483 2,903,878,391

(PYD) (RVA) (NAG) (CYD)

3.780 3.780

ABBREVIATION AMOUNT FORMULA

PYD 2,493,062,749

RVA 111,496,159

NAG 299,319,483

CYD 2,903,878,391 (PYD+RVA+NAG)

PYM 3.780

Millage Equivalent of Reassessed Value Added ME 0.145 (RVA/CYD) * PYM

RR 3.635 PYM - ME

If the 2024 Proposed Millage Rate for this Taxing Jurisdiction exceeds the Rollback Millage Rate     Rollback Millage Rate 3.635

computed above, this section will automatically calculate the amount of increase in property     2024 Millage Rate 3.780

taxes that is part of the notice required in O.C.G.A. Section 48-5-32.1(c) (2)     Percentage Increase 3.99%

DESCRIPTION 2023 DIGEST 2024 DIGEST

COMPUTATION OF MILLAGE RATE ROLLBACK AND PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAXES FOR YEAR 2024

Chatham Pooler

INFORMATION FOR THE SHADED PORTIONS OF THIS SECTION MUST BE ENTERED 

This information will be the actual values and millage rates certified to the Department of Revenue for the applicable tax years.

Other Net Changes to Taxable Digest

 REAL

 PERSONAL

                            2024 PROPOSED MILLAGE RATE >>>

THIS SECTION WILL CALCULATE AUTOMATICALLY UPON ENTRY OF INFORMATION ABOVE

DESCRIPTION

2023 Net Digest 

Net Value Added-Reassessment of Existing Real Property

             2023 MILLAGE RATE >>>

2024 Net Digest

2023 Millage Rate

Rollback Millage Rate for 2024

COMPUTATION OF PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAXES

H:\Millage rate\2024\2024.05.23 PT32



Understanding Millage Rate and Assessed Value

When it comes to property taxes, two key concepts are assessed value and millage rate. Let’s 
explore how they work together to determine how much you owe in taxes.

What is assessed value? Assessed value is the dollar amount that the local government gives to 
your property for tax purposes. It’s not necessarily the same as the market value (how much 
your property could sell for), but it’s used to figure out how much you owe in property taxes. 

How is my assessed value determined? Local tax assessors figure out the assessed value of 
your property using things like the size of your property, the condition of your home, and what 
similar properties are selling for in your area. Assessed value can change based on updates to 
property values, changes in local laws, or changes in the economy. For Pooler, the assessed 
value is currently 40% percentage of the market value. 

What is millage rate? Millage rate is the amount of tax you pay per $1,000 of your property’s 
assessed value. It is expressed in mills, where one mill equals $1 per $1,000. For example, if the 
millage rate is 5 mills, you would only pay $5 for every $1,000 of assessed property value. 
Millage rates can change based on the budget needs of the local government and the total 
assessed value of properties. 

How is the millage rate calculated? To find out the millage rate, the local government divides 
the total amount of money they need by the total assessed value of all properties, then 
multiplies the result by 1,000.

Example:

1. Assessed Value of Your Home: $200,000
2. Millage Rate: 5 mills (which is $5 per $1,000)
3. Tax Calculation:

o Convert $200,000 into $1,000 units:  
200,000

1,000 = 200 units
o Multiply by the millage rate: 5 mills × 200 = 1,000 dollars

So, if the assessed value of your property is $200,000 and the millage rate is 5 mills, you would 
owe $1,000 in property taxes. 

By understanding these concepts, you can see how your property taxes are determined.



 

 
1 
 

  
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – MINUTES 

July 15, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Karen Williams, Mayor  
    Wesley Bashlor, Councilmember 
    Michael Carpenter, Councilmember  
    Aaron Higgins, Mayor Pro Tem 
    Tom Hutcherson, Councilmember 
    Shannon Valim, Councilmember 
    John Wilcher, Councilmember 
     Craig Call, City Attorney   
     Matthew Saxon, City Manager     
    Chris Lightle, Finance Officer    
    Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council  
 
Absent:   
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 
Executive Pastor Shirlinia Daniel of Bread of Life Ministries gave the invocation. 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Executive Pastor Shirlinia Daniel led the pledge. 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

VI. MILLAGE RATE PUBLIC HEARING #1 
 
Mayor Karen Williams opened the public hearing at 6:04 p.m. Citizens Glenda 
Farris, Don Moffett, Azsha Hankerson, Linda Ambrose, and Kimberly O’Connell 
commented. Mayor Karen Williams closed the public hearing at 6:25 p.m. No 
action was taken. 
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. City Council Workshop Minutes of July 1, 2024 

 



  

2 

B. City Council Meeting Minutes of July 1, 2024 
 

C. City Council Executive Session Minutes of July 1, 2024 
 

D. Town Hall Minutes of July 2, 2024 
 

E. Special Event Permit Application for Jesus the Captain of My Boat 
Children’s Festival on July 27, 2024  
 

F. Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Maintenance and 
Sidewalk Bonds for Harmony Phase 7, Subject to City Attorney 
Approval 
 
Councilmember Tom Hutcherson moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Bashlor 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
A. Public Works 
 
  City Manager Matthew Saxon provided the Public Works Report. 
 
B. Finance 
 
  Chief Finance Officer Chris Lightle provided the Finance Report. 
 
C. Fire-Rescue 
 
    Chief Wade Simmons provided the Fire-Rescue Report. 
 
D. Police 
 
 Chief Ashley Brown provided the Police Department Report. 
 
E. Recreation & Parks 
 
 Director Hugh Elton gave the Recreation & Parks Report. 
 
F. Planning & Development 
   
  Director Nicole Johnson provided the Planning & Development Report. 
 

VIII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
 
A. Ordinance O2024-07.B – To Amend Chapter 46 – Fire Prevention and 

Protection; Sections 7, 8, 9 (First Reading) 
  
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the ordinance for consideration and 
Chief Wade Simmons reviewed the proposed revisions. Mayor Pro Tem Aaron 
Higgins moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance O2024-07.B – To 



  

3 

Amend Chapter 46 – Fire Prevention and Protection; Sections 7, 8, 9. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

B. Proclamation for International Friendship Day 
 
Mayor Karen Williams read aloud the proclamation. 
 

IX. OUTSTANDING BUSINESS 
 
A. Westside Commerce Center Native Development Group Request  

for Consideration 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the request for consideration. 
Attorney Josh Yellin was present on behalf of the petitioner. Citizens Amy 
Gilliam, Sharon Generette, Courtney Rawlins, Veronica Daniel, and Don 
Moffett commented. Councilmember Michael Carpenter moved to deny the 
Westside Commerce Center Native Development Group Request for 
Consideration. 
 
Motion to Deny; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Carpenter 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Zoning Map Amendment for 1405 Quacco Road (Public Hearing, 

Action) 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the amendment for consideration. 
Reed Earhart of Hussey Gay Bell was present on behalf of the petitioner. 
Mayor Karen Williams opened the public hearing. Citizen Don Moffett 
commented, and Mayor Karen Williams closed the public hearing. Mayor Pro 
Tem Aaron Higgins, citing criterion #3, moved to deny the Zoning Map 
Amendment for 1405 Quacco Road.  
 
Motion to Deny; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Carpenter 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

B. Zoning Map Amendment for Jabot PUD (Public Hearing, Action) 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the amendment for consideration. 
Neil McKenzie of Coleman Company and Jack Wardlaw were present on behalf 
of the petitioner. Mayor Karen Williams read aloud a joint statement signed 
by Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins, Councilmember Michael Carpenter, and 
herself, then opened the public hearing. Citizens Amy Gilliam, Don Moffett, 



  

4 

Rebecca Henry, Renee Higgins, Jacqueline Pulley, Pat Lynch, Veronica Daniel, 
Adrian Griffin, Maribeth Lindler, and Dave Hopkins commented. Mayor Karen 
Williams closed the public hearing, and Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved 
to postpone the Zoning Map Amendment for Jabot PUD until the first City 
Council Meeting of September 2024. Jack Wardlaw verbally agreed to cover 
the costs of a second advertised public hearing on the item. 
 
Motion to Postpone; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Bashlor 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

C. Variance Request for 130 Towne Center Drive  
(Public Hearing, Action) withdrawn by petitioner 
 
The item was withdrawn by the petitioner. No action was taken. 
 

D. Variance Request for 850 Patel Drive  
(Public Hearing, Action) withdrawn by petitioner 
 
The item was withdrawn by the petitioner. No action was taken. 
 

E. Variance Request for 1565 Pooler Parkway Lowe’s Outparcel  
(Public Hearing, Action) 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the variance for consideration. Robert 
Forrest and Cody Rogers of EMC Engineering were present on behalf of the 
petitioner. Mayor Karen Williams opened and closed the public hearing 
without comment. Councilmember Wesley Bashlor, upon review of the 
criteria, moved to approve the Variance Request for 1565 Pooler Parkway 
Lowe’s Outparcel. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Bashlor 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

F. Final Plat and Performance Bonds for Westbrook Areas L1, L2, L3 
 
City Manager Matthew Saxon presented the plat and bonds for consideration. 
Reed Earhart of Hussey Gay Bell was present on behalf of the petitioner.  
Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved to approve the final plat and release the 
bonds for Westbrook Areas L1 in the amount of $802,305.27, L2 in the 
amount of $1,713,903.84, and L3 in the amount of $1,243, 471.12. 
 
Motion to Approve and Release; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 



  

5 

Citizen Richard Danis commented.  
 

XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
With no further public business to conduct, Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved 
to enter Executive Session. Mayor and Council entered at 8:34 p.m.  
 
Motion to Enter; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the meeting back to order at 10:04 p.m. 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilmember Tom Hutcherson moved to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (6-0-0) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:04 p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and are approved on this  
 
________ day of ________________, ________. 
 
 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Karen L. Williams, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 
 







1

 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING – MINUTES

July 22, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322

I. ROLL CALL

Present: Karen Williams, Mayor 
 Michael Carpenter, Councilmember 
 Aaron Higgins, Mayor Pro Tem
 Tom Hutcherson, Councilmember
 Shannon Valim, Councilmember
 John Wilcher, Councilmember
  Craig Call, City Attorney
  Matthew Saxon, City Manager    
 Chris Lightle, Finance Officer   
 Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

Absent: Wesley Bashlor, Councilmember

II. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Karen Williams called the hearing to order at 6:00 p.m.

III. INVOCATION

City Manager Matthew Saxon gave the invocation.

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

City Manager Matthew Saxon led the pledge.

V. MILLAGE RATE PUBLIC HEARING #2

Finance Officer Chris Lightle reviewed the millage rate adoption process. Mayor 
Karen Williams opened the public hearing. Citizen Patrick Colpoys commented. 
Mayor Karen Williams closed the public hearing. No action was taken.

VI. ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember John Wilcher moved to adjourn the hearing.

Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (5-0-0)
MOVER: Wilcher
SECONDER: Hutcherson
AYES: Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher
NAYS:

The hearing adjourned at 6:14 p.m.



2

The foregoing minutes are true and correct and are approved on this 

________ day of ________________, ________.

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA

__________________________________
Karen L. Williams, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council













































M
A

RK
ET

 P
LA

C
E 

W
A

Y

CLEAR LAKE WAY

LEGEND

8" SEWER MAIN

SEWER MANHOLE

10" WATER MAIN

8" WATER MAIN

DRAINAGE PIPE

4" FORCEMAIN

PHASE LINE

PHASE        ACREAGE

  1A        9.96 AC

  1B        21.46 AC

  2       15.16 AC

  3        12.26 AC

TOTAL:         58.84 AC

BUILDING 1

BU
ILD

IN
G 27

BUILDING 28

BUILDING 35

BUILDING 36

BUILDING 37

BUILDING 38

BUILDING 29

BUILDING 30

BUILDING 31

BUILDING 32

BUILDING 33

BUILDING 34

BUILDING 73

BUILDING 72

BUILDING 71

BUILDING 70

BUILDING 74

BUILDING 75

BU
ILD

IN
G 

26

BU
IL

DI
NG

 2
5

BUILDING 63

BUILDING 62

BUILDING 69

BUILDING 68

BU
ILD

IN
G 

67

BU
ILD

IN
G 

60

BU
ILD

IN
G 

64

BU
ILD

IN
G 

56

BUILDING 65

BUILDING 66

BUILDING 59

BUILDING 58

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
61

BUILDING 57

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
76

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
77

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
78

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
80

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
79

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
81 BU

IL
DI

N
G 

41

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
40

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
39

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
42

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
43

BU
ILD

IN
G 

55

BU
ILD

IN
G 

54

BU
ILD

IN
G 

53

BU
IL

DI
NG

 5
2

BUILDING 45

BUILDING 44

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
46

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
51

BUILDING 4

BUILDING 2

BUILDING 3

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
5

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
6

BU
ILD

IN
G 7

BUILD
IN

G 8

BU
ILD

IN
G 

9

BUILDING 10

BUILDING 11

BUILDING 12

BUILDING 13

BUILDING 18

BUILDING 14

BUILDING 19

BUILDING 20

BUILDING 16

BUILDING 15

BUILDING 21

BUILDING 22

BUILDING 17

BUILDING 23

BUILDING 24

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
47

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
48

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
50

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
49

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14
15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45
46

47

48 49 50 51

52

53

54

55
56

57
58

59

60
61

62
63

64

65
66

67
68

69

75
76

77
78

79
80

81
82

83

84
85

86
87

88

70

71

72

73

74

89
90

91

92
93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

11
3

11
2

11
1

11
0

10
9

11
8

11
7

11
6

11
5

11
4

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

128
127

126
125

124

133
132

131
130

129

163

162

161

160

159

138

137

136

135

134

143

142

141

140

139

148

147

146

145

144

153

152

151

150

149

158

157

156

155

154

178

177

176

175

174

173

172

171

170

169

168

167

166

165

164

17
9

18
0

18
1

18
3

18
4

18
5

18
2

18
6

19
1

19
2

19
3

19
0

19
4

19
6

19
7

19
8

19
5

19
9

18
7

18
8

18
9

200
201

202

203
204

205

20
6

20
7

20
8

20
9

22
9

22
8

22
7

22
6

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

22
5

22
4

22
3

22
2

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

22
1

22
0

21
9

21
8

23
3

23
2

23
1

23
4

23
0

23
8

23
7

23
6

23
9

23
5

24
3

24
2

24
1

24
4

24
0

24
8

24
7

24
6

24
9

25
3

25
2

25
1

25
4

25
0

27
1

27
2

27
3

27
0

27
430
3

30
4

30
5

255

256

257

258

259

293

294

295

296

297

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

298

299

300

301

302

310

309

308

307

306

315

314

313

312

311

289

288

287

286

285

284

283

282

281

280

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331
332

333

334
335

27
6

27
7

27
8

27
5

27
9

29
0

29
1

29
2

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

34
5

34
6

34
7

34
8

34
9

35
0

35
1

35
2

35
3

35
4

35
5

35
6

35
7

35
8

35
9

36
0

36
1

36
2

36
3

36
4

36
5

36
6

36
7

36
8

36
9

37
0

37
1

24
5

BUILDING 1

123

BUILDING NUMBER

         LOT NUMBER

NO.  OF
BUILDINGS

NO.  OF
UNITS

67

68

125

111

371 UNITS

16

16

26

23

81 BLDS

RO
GE

RS
 S

TR
EE

T

1" = 95'
REVIEWED:
DRAWN:
JOB NO:

PREPARED BY:

PREPARED FOR:

SCALE:
SHEET:

DATE:

PHASING EXHIBIT

360 COMMUNITIES
AT CLEARLAKE
POOLER, GEORGIA

360 ACQUISITIONS, LLC

J-26640.0008
VND
JRW

02/24/22

EX1

50 Park of Commerce Way
 Savannah, GA  31405  •  912.234.5300

www.thomasandhutton.com

http://www.thomasandhutton.com
temp
Line

temp_1
Line

temp_2
Line

temp_3
Line

temp_4
Line

temp_5
Line

temp_6
Line

temp_7
Line

temp_8
Line

temp_9
Line

temp_10
Line

temp_11
Line

temp_12
Line

temp_13
Line

temp_14
Line

temp_15
Line

temp_16
Line

temp_17
Line

temp_18
Line

temp_19
Line

temp_20
Line

temp_21
Line

temp_22
Line

temp_23
Line

temp_24
Line

temp_25
Line

temp_26
Line

temp_27
Line

temp_28
Line

temp_29
Line

temp_30
Line

temp_31
Line

temp_32
Line

temp_33
Line

temp_34
Line

temp_35
Line

temp_36
Line

temp_37
Line

temp_38
Line

temp_39
Line

temp_40
Line

temp_41
Line

temp_42
Line

temp_43
Line

temp_44
Line

temp_45
Line

temp_46
Line

temp_47
Line

temp_48
Line

temp_49
Line

temp_50
Line

temp_51
Line

temp_52
Line

temp_53
Line

temp_54
Line

temp_55
Line

temp_56
Line

temp_57
Line

temp_58
Line

temp_59
Line

temp_60
Line

temp_61
Line

temp_62
Line

temp_63
Line

temp_64
Line

temp_65
Line

temp_66
Line

temp_67
Line

temp_68
Line

temp_69
Line

temp_70
Line

temp_71
Line

temp_72
Line

temp_73
Line

temp_74
Line

temp_75
Line

temp_76
Line

temp_77
Line

temp_78
Line

temp_79
Line

temp_80
Line























































M
A

RK
ET

 P
LA

C
E 

W
A

Y

CLEAR LAKE WAY

LEGEND

8" SEWER MAIN

SEWER MANHOLE

10" WATER MAIN

8" WATER MAIN

DRAINAGE PIPE

4" FORCEMAIN

PHASE LINE

PHASE        ACREAGE

  1A        9.96 AC

  1B        21.46 AC

  2       15.16 AC

  3        12.26 AC

TOTAL:         58.84 AC

BUILDING 1

BU
ILD

IN
G 27

BUILDING 28

BUILDING 35

BUILDING 36

BUILDING 37

BUILDING 38

BUILDING 29

BUILDING 30

BUILDING 31

BUILDING 32

BUILDING 33

BUILDING 34

BUILDING 73

BUILDING 72

BUILDING 71

BUILDING 70

BUILDING 74

BUILDING 75

BU
ILD

IN
G 

26

BU
IL

DI
NG

 2
5

BUILDING 63

BUILDING 62

BUILDING 69

BUILDING 68

BU
ILD

IN
G 

67

BU
ILD

IN
G 

60

BU
ILD

IN
G 

64

BU
ILD

IN
G 

56

BUILDING 65

BUILDING 66

BUILDING 59

BUILDING 58

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
61

BUILDING 57

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
76

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
77

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
78

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
80

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
79

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
81 BU

IL
DI

N
G 

41

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
40

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
39

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
42

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
43

BU
ILD

IN
G 

55

BU
ILD

IN
G 

54

BU
ILD

IN
G 

53

BU
IL

DI
NG

 5
2

BUILDING 45

BUILDING 44

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
46

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
51

BUILDING 4

BUILDING 2

BUILDING 3

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
5

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
6

BU
ILD

IN
G 7

BUILD
IN

G 8

BU
ILD

IN
G 

9

BUILDING 10

BUILDING 11

BUILDING 12

BUILDING 13

BUILDING 18

BUILDING 14

BUILDING 19

BUILDING 20

BUILDING 16

BUILDING 15

BUILDING 21

BUILDING 22

BUILDING 17

BUILDING 23

BUILDING 24

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
47

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
48

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
50

BU
IL

DI
N

G 
49

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14
15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45
46

47

48 49 50 51

52

53

54

55
56

57
58

59

60
61

62
63

64

65
66

67
68

69

75
76

77
78

79
80

81
82

83

84
85

86
87

88

70

71

72

73

74

89
90

91

92
93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

11
3

11
2

11
1

11
0

10
9

11
8

11
7

11
6

11
5

11
4

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

128
127

126
125

124

133
132

131
130

129

163

162

161

160

159

138

137

136

135

134

143

142

141

140

139

148

147

146

145

144

153

152

151

150

149

158

157

156

155

154

178

177

176

175

174

173

172

171

170

169

168

167

166

165

164

17
9

18
0

18
1

18
3

18
4

18
5

18
2

18
6

19
1

19
2

19
3

19
0

19
4

19
6

19
7

19
8

19
5

19
9

18
7

18
8

18
9

200
201

202

203
204

205

20
6

20
7

20
8

20
9

22
9

22
8

22
7

22
6

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

22
5

22
4

22
3

22
2

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

22
1

22
0

21
9

21
8

23
3

23
2

23
1

23
4

23
0

23
8

23
7

23
6

23
9

23
5

24
3

24
2

24
1

24
4

24
0

24
8

24
7

24
6

24
9

25
3

25
2

25
1

25
4

25
0

27
1

27
2

27
3

27
0

27
430
3

30
4

30
5

255

256

257

258

259

293

294

295

296

297

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

298

299

300

301

302

310

309

308

307

306

315

314

313

312

311

289

288

287

286

285

284

283

282

281

280

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331
332

333

334
335

27
6

27
7

27
8

27
5

27
9

29
0

29
1

29
2

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

34
5

34
6

34
7

34
8

34
9

35
0

35
1

35
2

35
3

35
4

35
5

35
6

35
7

35
8

35
9

36
0

36
1

36
2

36
3

36
4

36
5

36
6

36
7

36
8

36
9

37
0

37
1

24
5

BUILDING 1

123

BUILDING NUMBER

         LOT NUMBER

NO.  OF
BUILDINGS

NO.  OF
UNITS

67

68

125

111

371 UNITS

16

16

26

23

81 BLDS

RO
GE

RS
 S

TR
EE

T

1" = 95'
REVIEWED:
DRAWN:
JOB NO:

PREPARED BY:

PREPARED FOR:

SCALE:
SHEET:

DATE:

PHASING EXHIBIT

360 COMMUNITIES
AT CLEARLAKE
POOLER, GEORGIA

360 ACQUISITIONS, LLC

J-26640.0008
VND
JRW

02/24/22

EX1

50 Park of Commerce Way
 Savannah, GA  31405  •  912.234.5300

www.thomasandhutton.com

http://www.thomasandhutton.com
temp_81
Line

temp_82
Line

temp_83
Line

temp_84
Line

temp_85
Line

temp_86
Line

temp_87
Line

temp_88
Line

temp_89
Line

temp_90
Line

temp_91
Line

temp_92
Line

temp_93
Line

temp_94
Line

temp_95
Line

temp_96
Line

temp_97
Line

temp_98
Line

temp_99
Line

temp_100
Line

temp_101
Line

temp_102
Line

temp_103
Line

temp_104
Line

temp_105
Line

temp_106
Line

temp_107
Line

temp_108
Line

temp_109
Line

temp_110
Line

temp_111
Line

temp_112
Line

temp_113
Line

temp_114
Line

temp_115
Line

temp_116
Line

temp_117
Line

temp_118
Line

temp_119
Line

temp_120
Line

temp_121
Line

temp_122
Line

temp_123
Line

temp_124
Line

temp_125
Line

temp_126
Line

temp_127
Line

temp_128
Line

temp_129
Line

temp_130
Line

temp_131
Line

temp_132
Line

temp_133
Line

temp_134
Line

temp_135
Line

temp_136
Line

temp_137
Line

temp_138
Line

temp_139
Line

temp_140
Line

temp_141
Line

temp_142
Line

temp_143
Line

temp_144
Line

temp_145
Line

temp_146
Line

temp_147
Line

temp_148
Line

temp_149
Line

temp_150
Line

temp_151
Line

temp_152
Line

temp_153
Line

temp_154
Line

temp_155
Line

temp_156
Line

temp_157
Line

temp_158
Line

temp_159
Line

temp_160
Line

temp_161
Line















1

   STATE OF GEORGIA }
)

   COUNTY OF CHATHAM }

 ORDINANCE O2024-07.B

Emergency Access Requirements for Gated Properties, 
Knox Brand Key Lock Boxes for Emergency Access, and 

For Certain Structures as Designated by the Fire Chief or Their Designee.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 
46 – FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows:

I

Sec. 46-7. Emergency access requirements for gated communities properties.

Sec. 46-7.4. Standards.
Operation of gates or restricted access. Where access to an area is restricted because of 
secured openings and where immediate access is necessary for emergency (lifesaving, 
firefighting purposes or law enforcement purposes) the following is required.: 

(1) All vehicle access gates or barriers shall be electrically operated for entry and
 exit by an approved method by the City of Pooler; and furthermore, they will
 be equipped with the required following access control system: 

a. Radio operated controller. All blocking barriers shall be equipped with
  a range-able radio receiver capable of receiving access commands
  from public safety radio transceivers. Such emergency access control
 device will be able to operate with the radio systems typically used by
 public safety agencies operating within Chatham County and the State
  of Georgia. Exceptions: Radio controlled exit/activation LED device
 may be waived by installation of a "free exit" loop. 

          (2) Gates requiring radio-controlled exit/LED activation shall be provided
 with an approved two-inch by two-inch blue, reflective marker visible to the
  exiting vehicle. It shall be located in the center of the exit gate. 

(3) Wiring of electrical gates shall be provided by AC (Alternate Current) current
  with underground installation. 

          (4) Electrically operated gates shall fail to the open position when the power is off.
   They shall remain open until power is restored. 



2

          (5) Residential gated properties (single-family, multi-family, townhomes,
  and condominiums) shall require a Click2Enter brand radio-operated
 control system for all vehicular accesses.

            (6)  Commercial and industrial gated properties shall require Knox brand
  gate and key switches for all automatic powered gates and Knox brand
  exterior padlocks for all non-powered gates. 

Sec. 46-7.5. Submittal.

The following information shall be submitted to the City of Pooler Fire Department and the 
City of Pooler Inspections Department: 

(1) Method of operation of equipment 

(2) If applicable UL (Underwriters Laboratory) listing numbers of equipment used 

(3) Manufacturers specification sheets for electrical gate controller; and 

(4) A site plan of the property and a site plan detail of each gate location drawn 
to scale (1"—10', 1"—20', or 1"—40') indicating or showing: 

a. Contractors company name, address, phone number, and 
 contact person; 

b. Exact locations of the entry to the property; 

c. Assessor's parcel number; 

d. Property lines; 

e. Proposed fence, pedestrian gates, and vehicle gates; and 

f. Proposed location of key box and radio operated controller 

g. 

(5) Site plan requirements are for apply to remodels, rebuilds, and
  new construction only. 

Sec. 46-8 - Knox Box brand key lock boxes for emergency access.

Sec. 46-8.1. For commercial, residential, and other locations with restricted access 
through locked gates.

(a) The following structures shall be equipped with a key lock box at or near the main 
entrance or such other location required by the fire chief Fire Chief or their 
designee:

(1) Commercial or industrial gated structures that are secured in a manner that 
restricts access during an emergency; 

(2) Multi-family residential structures that have restricted access through locked 
gates; and 

(3) Governmental structures and nursing care facilities with gated entrances. 

(b) All newly constructed structures, communities, or complexes subject to this section 
shall have the key lock box installed and operational prior to the issuance of an 
occupancy permit. All structures, communities, or complexes in existence on the 



3

effective date of the ordinance from which this section is derived and subject to this 
section shall have one year from the effective date of the ordinance from which this 
section is derived to have a key lock box installed and operational. 

(c) The fire chief shall designate the type of key lock box system to be 
implemented within the city and shall have the authority to require all 
structures to use the designated system. The owner or operator of a structure, 
community, or complex required to have a key lock box shall, at all times, 
keep a key inside the key lock box and maintain operation of the key lock box 
at all times. All property owners, structure owners, and managers shall notify 
the Fire Department immediately of any changes to keys and/or locks, fobs, 
reader cards, etc. for access to allow for the placement of new keys in the key 
lock box.

(d) The owner or operator of a structure, community, or complex required to have 
a key lock box shall, at all times, keep a key in the lock box, or maintain the 
operation of the box at all times. Any person, entity, corporation, association, 
etc. who owns, operates, or maintains a structure, community, or complex 
subject to this section and in violation hereof shall be subject to the general 
penalty provisions found in Section 1-12 of this Code. Further, during a 
response to an emergency wherein emergency response vehicles are unable 
to enter a gated/controlled access, the City of Pooler shall be held harmless 
from any damage to a gated/controlled access. Where access is not provided, 
the property owner may be billed by the City of Pooler for the time, material, 
and equipment used during the emergency response.

(e) The fire chief shall be authorized to implement rules and regulations for the 
use of the lock box system. The Fire Chief or their designee shall designate the 
type and brand of key lock box system to be implemented within the City and 
shall have the authority to require all structures to use the designated system. 
The approved key lock box brand is the Knox Rapid Access System AKA 
Knoxbox.

(f) Any person, entity, corporation, association, etc. who owns, operates, or 
maintains a structure, community, or complex subject to this section and in 
violation hereof shall be subject to the general penalty provisions found in 
section 1-12 of this Code. All requests for a designated key lock box system 
shall be coordinated through the Fire Chief or their designee to obtain 
approval for the location of the key lock box on each site.

(g) All requests for the designated key lock box system shall be coordinated 
through the fire marshal and get approval for the location of the box on each 
site. The Fire Chief or their designee shall be authorized to implement rules 
and regulations for the use of the designated key lock box system.

(h) This article shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Sec. 46-9. For certain buildings structures as designated by the fire chief Fire Chief 
or their designee.

(a) The following structures shall be equipped with a key lock box at or near the main 
entrance for such other location required by the fire chief Fire Chief or their 
designee: 

(1) Commercial or industrial structures protected by an automatic alarm system or 
automatic suppression system, or such structures that are secured in a manner 
that restricts access during an emergency; 



4

(2) Multi-family residential structures that have restricted access through locked doors 
and have a common corridor for access to the living units; and 

(3) Governmental structures and nursing care facilities. 

(b) All newly constructed structures subject to this section shall have the key lock box 
installed and operational prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit. All structures in 
existence on the effective date of the ordinance from which this section is derived and 
subject to this section shall have one year from the effective date of the ordinance from 
which this section is derived to have a key lock box installed and operational. 

(1) The fire marshal shall designate the type of key lock box system to be 
implemented within the city and shall have the authority to require all 
structures to use the designated system. 

(2) The owner or operator of a structure required to have a key lock box shall, 
at all times, keep a key in the lock box that will allow for access to the 
structure. 

(3) The fire marshal shall be authorized to implement rules and regulations 
for the use of the lock box system. 

(4) Any person, entity, corporation, association, etc. who owns, operates, or 
maintains a structure, community, or complex subject to this section and 
in violation hereof shall be subject to the general penalty provisions found 
in section 1-12 of this Code. Further, during a response to an emergency, 
where access by emergency response vehicles are unable to enter a 
gated/controlled access, the city shall be held harmless from any damage 
to a gated/controlled access. Where access is not provided, the property 
owner may be billed by the City of Pooler for the time, material, and 
equipment use for emergency response. 

(5) All requests for the designated key lock box system shall be coordinated 
through the fire marshal and get approval for the location of the box on 
each site. 

(c) The owner or operator of a structure required to have a key lock box shall, at 
all times, keep a key inside the key lock box and maintain operation of the key 
lock box at all times.

(d) Any person, entity, corporation, association, etc. who owns, operates, or 
maintains a structure, community, or complex subject to this section and in 
violation hereof shall be subject to the general penalty provisions found in 
section 1-12 of this Code. Further, during a response to an emergency, 
wherein access by emergency response vehicles are unable to enter a 
gated/controlled access, the City of Pooler shall be held harmless from any 
damage to a gated/controlled access. Where access is not provided, the 
property owner may be billed by the City of Pooler for the time, material, and 
equipment use for emergency response.

(e) The Fire Chief or their designee shall designate the type and brand of key lock 
box system to be implemented within the City and shall have the authority to 
require all structures to use the designated system. The approved key lock 
box brand is the Knox Rapid Access System AKA Knoxbox.

(f) All requests for a designated key lock box system shall be coordinated 
through the Fire Chief or their designee to obtain approval for the location of 
the key lock box on each site.

(g) The Fire Chief or their designee shall be authorized to implement rules and 
regulations for the use of the designated key lock box system.



5

(h) This article shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

II

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

III

If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the said holding shall in no way affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

IV

This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Mayor and City 
Council of Pooler, Georgia.

FIRST READING: _______ day of _____________________, __________

SECOND READING: _______ day of _____________________, __________

ADOPTED: _______ day of _____________________, __________

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA

__________________________________
Karen L. Williams, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council



 

PROCLAMATION

Karen L. Williams, Mayor

Kiley Fusco, Clerk of  Council

ATTEST:

National Health Center Week
WHEREAS, 

 
 
 WHEREAS, 

 
 

WHEREAS,

 
WHEREAS, 

 
 

WHEREAS, 
 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

health centers across our nation serve as beacons of accessible, affordable, and 
high-quality healthcare, providing essential medical, dental, behavioral health, 
and preventive services to individuals and families in our communities; and

National Health Center Week, observed from August 4-10, 2024, offers an 
opportunity to celebrate the profound contributions of health centers and their 
dedicated healthcare professionals in promoting wellness, reducing health 
disparities, and improving the overall quality of life for millions of Americans; and

health centers embody the principles of equity and inclusivity by offering 
comprehensive care to all, regardless of their ability to pay, ensuring that 
everyone has access to the healthcare services they need; and

the compassionate efforts of health center staff, volunteers, and supporters 
deserve our highest commendation for their unwavering commitment to delivering 
patient-centered care and fostering healthier communities through education, 
prevention, and treatment; and

during this National Health Center Week, we reaffirm our commitment to 
supporting policies and initiatives that strengthen health centers, expand 
healthcare access, and enhance the well-being of individuals and families across 
our nation;

the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler, Georgia do hereby proclaim August 
4-10, 2024 as National Health Center Week and urge all citizens to join in 
recognizing the vital role of health centers, expressing gratitude to their dedicated 
staff and volunteers, and raising awareness about the importance of accessible 
healthcare for all.

I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Pooler, Georgia to 
be affixed this day of August 5, 2024.



 

 
1 
 

 PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse, Show Room and Office 

 

Project:  #A24-0111 

P&Z Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  August 5, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Greg Coleman / Coleman Company (Agent) 

Location (Address):  1323 E US Highway 80 

Parcel (PIN):  50987 02001B 

Existing Zoning:  I-1 (Light Industrial)  

   

Zoning Action:  Conditional Use 

Request:  Request to establish three warehousing units to include a showroom, 
an office and storage facility for Livingoods. 

   

Application Filed:  June 25, 2024 

Legal Notice Published:  July 14, 2024 

Sign Posted:  July 9, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  July 8, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Approval with the condition that truck access is only permitted via 
Old Louisville Road 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  After review of the criteria, P&Z recommends approval of the request 
with the condition that truck access is only permitted via Old 
Louisville Road. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request with 
the condition that truck access is only permitted via Old Louisville 
Road.” 

   



  

2 

Background:  The subject site is approximately 29.5 acres, is undeveloped and is 
located at 1323 E. US Highway 80.  The property is bordered by US 
Highway 80 to the south and Old Louisville Road to the north and 
adjacent properties are in the I-1 and C-2 zoning districts.  This 
property was rezoned in December 2023 from R-A-1 and C-2 to I-1 
with the condition that the I-1 zoned portions shall only have truck 
access from Old Louisville Road. 

The applicant is proposing to develop the site with three warehouse 
units to include a showroom, office and storage facility for 
Livingoods. 

 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. IV, Table 4.1: Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

App. A, Art. IV, Sec. 4. Conditional Uses. 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purpose of this 
ordinance. 

• The proposed use would be consistent with the 
surrounding uses, which includes other warehouses 
and similar industrial, commercial, and office uses.  
The proposed use would be consistent with the 
purpose of the ordinance for industrial development. 

2. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or 
development of adjacent properties or the general 
neighborhood or adversely affect the health and safety of 
residents and workers.  

• The proposed use would not be detrimental to 
adjacent properties or surrounding areas.  The 
proposed use is an allowed use within the I-1 District 
and would be similar to the other warehousing and 
industrial uses abutting the property and nearby.   

3. The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard 
because of the number of persons who will attend or use such 
facility, vehicular movement acquainted with the use, noise or 
fumes generated by or as a result of the use, or type of 
physical activity associated with the land use. 

• The proposed use is consistent and compatible with 
existing uses nearby and those otherwise allowed in 
the district and would not constitute a nuisance or 
hazard. 

4. The proposed use will not be affected adversely by the 
existing uses of adjacent properties. 



  

3 

• The proposed use will not be affected adversely by 
the existing uses of adjacent properties as the 
proposed use is similar and compatible with existing 
uses. 

5. The proposed use will be placed on a lot which is of sufficient 
size to satisfy the space requirements of said use. 

• The subject site is of sufficient size to satisfy all site 
design requirements for the use.  

6. The parking and all development standards set forth for each 
particular use for which a permit may be granted will be met. 

•  Any future parking and site development proposed 
for this property must go through the site plan review 
and approval process to ensure development is in 
compliance with City code. 

7. The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 
properties in terms of property values, by rendering such 
properties less suitable and therefore less marketable for the 
type of development to which they are committed or restricted 
in order to promote the public welfare and protect the 
established development pattern. 

• The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 
properties in terms of property values, by rendering 
such properties less suitable and therefore less 
marketable for the type of development to which they 
are committed or restricted in order to promote the 
public welfare and protect the established 
development pattern. 

   

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request complies with the required criteria for 
conditional use.  As such, staff recommends Approval of the 
request with the condition that truck access is only permitted 
via Old Louisville Road. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Zoning Map 

C. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   
 



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Vicinity Map -
1323 E US

Highway 80
07/12/2024

 Parcels

Attachment A



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Zoning Map -
1323 E US

Highway 80
07/12/2024

 Parcels

 Business/Commercial

 Industrial

 PUD

 Residential

Attachment B



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



 

 
1 
 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Variance for Pooler Crossroads Lot 5 Clear Lake Reserve Phase 1 (Clear Lake Vista)  
Parking Requirements 

 
 

Project:  #A24-0118 

P&Z Meeting Date:  July 22, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  August 5, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Daniel Hawker  

Location (Address):  Clear Lake Way and Kita Avenue 

Parcel (PIN):  51011F 01005 

Existing Zoning:  R-3C (Multi-family Residential Dwelling District) 

   

Zoning Action:  Variance 

Request:  Request to reduce the minimum required parking of 1.75 parking 
spaces per unit to 1.5 parking spaces per unit for a multi-family 
development. 

   

Application Filed:  July 3, 2024 

Legal Notice Published:  July 14, 2024 

Sign Posted:  July 9, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  July 9, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Denial 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  After review of the criteria P&Z recommends denial of the request. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for denial of the request.” 



  

2 

   

Background:  The subject property is currently vacant, and the site of a proposed 
multi-family residential development known as Clear Lake Vista 
located off Clear Lake Way and Kita Avenue.  The site is within the 
R-3C (Multi-family Residential Dwelling) zoning district and is 
approximately 14.84 acres in size.     

The applicant is seeking approval for a variance to reduce the 
minimum required parking of 1.75 parking spaces per unit to 1.5 
parking spaces per unit for a multi-family development. The request 
is being made to provide additional green space throughout the 
development and reduce impervious surfaces. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. V, Sec. 9 - Variances 

App. A, Art. III, Sec. 5 – Off Street Parking and Unloading 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions 
beyond that of surrounding properties, including irregularity, 
narrowness, or shallowness of the lot size or shape, or 
exceptional topographical or other physical conditions, 
peculiar to the particular property. 

• The subject parcel is currently vacant and is generally 
the same size as other parcels in the vicinity, and it 
does not have unique physical constraints that give it 
peculiar circumstances or conditions.  

2. That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, 
the property cannot be developed in strict conformity with the 
provisions of the zoning ordinance, without undue hardship to 
the property.  

• The parcel does not have any unique physical 
circumstances or conditions that apply to it. The layout 
of the proposed multi-family development can be 
reconfigured, or the height of the buildings can be 
increased to allow parking on the first floor to 
accommodate the required parking to comply with 
parking requirements or to increase open space as 
desired. The property could be developed meeting the 
requirements of the ordinance.   

3. That granting the variance will not result in authorization of a 
use not otherwise permitted in the district in which the 
property is located or cause substantial detriment to the 
public good. 



  

3 

• The variance will not result in a use not authorized in 
the zoning district.   

   

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request does not comply with the required criteria for 
a variance in meeting only one of three criteria.  As such, staff 
recommends Denial of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Zoning Map 

C. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   
 



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Vicinity Map -
Clear Lake Vista

07/15/2024

 Parcels

Attachment A



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Zoning Map -
Clear Lake Vista

07/15/2024

 Parcels

 Business/Commercial

 Industrial

 PUD

 Residential

Attachment B



Zoning Variance 
Application 

Page 1 of 2  

Updated MAY 2024 
 

City of Pooler • Planning & Development Department • 100 US Hwy 80 SW • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 
planning@pooler-ga.gov | www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

Contact Information 

Applicant Name Applicant Phone 

Applicant Mailing Address Applicant Email 

Property Owner Name Property Owner Phone 

Property Owner Mailing Address Property Owner Email 

Contact Person Name Contact Person Phone 

Contact Person Mailing Address Contact Person Email 

Property Information 

Location Address Parcel Identification # 

NOTICE TO APPLICANT 

This application will not be processed until the following items are submitted: 

  Filing fee (checks payable to: City of Pooler) 
  Survey of the property signed and stamped by a State of Georgia Certified Land Surveyor 
  Site plan and/or architectural rendering of proposed development depicting location  
      of lot restrictions   
  One copy if 11” x 17” or smaller; 16 copies if larger 
  Signed and dated Campaign Contribution and Variance Standards forms 
  Authorization of property owner signed, dated, and notarized 

Under Contact Information, addresses and telephone numbers do not have to be repeated if already 
provided. Staff correspondence will be sent to one designated contact person, not all listed. 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Hearing Date: ______________________________     Published in Legal Organ: ____________________ 

Letters of Notification Mailed: __________________     Sign Posted: ______________________________ 

Action (minutes attached):   Approved      Denied    Results Mailed to Applicant: __________________ 

Attachment C



Zoning Variance 
Application 

Page 2 of 2  

Updated MAY 2024 
 

City of Pooler • Planning & Development Department • 100 US Hwy 80 SW • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 
planning@pooler-ga.gov | www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

Current Zoning Current Use 

Purpose of the variance request, including specific sections of zoning ordinance that apply: 

Adjacent Property Owners 

Name and address of surrounding property owner’s primary residence within a radius of 200 ft. of the property 
as of the date of filing. Include those directly across a public right-of-way. Use an additional sheet if necessary. 

Name     Address     Zip 

Name     Address     Zip 

Name     Address     Zip 

Name     Address     Zip 

Affidavit 

I, the undersigned, certify that I have read, examined, and completed this application and certify that all the 
information pertained in this application is true and correct.  

Applicant Name       Applicant Signature Date 

Attestant Name        Attestant Title Date 

Attachment C



Zoning Variance 
Standards 

Page 1 of 1  

Updated SEPT 2023 

City of Pooler • Planning & Zoning Department • 100 US Hwy 80 SW • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 
planning@pooler-ga.gov | www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

  Variance Criteria 

After an application has been submitted to the Building Official, reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission, and 
a public hearing has been held by the Mayor and Council, the Mayor and Council may grant a variance from the 
strict application of the provisions in this ordinance only if at least two of the following findings are made: 

1. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions beyond that of surrounding properties, including
irregularity, narrowness, or shallowness of the lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other
physical conditions, peculiar to the particular property; and/or

2. That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, the property cannot be developed in strict
conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, without undue hardship to the property; and/or

3. That granting the variance will not result in authorization of a use not otherwise permitted in the district in
which the property is located or cause substantial detriment to the public good.

  Affidavit of Receipt 

I have received a copy of the standards for consideration of my variance request and understand that Mayor & 
Council may grant my variance only if my request meets two of these standards. 

Applicant Name        Applicant Signature Date 

Attachment C



Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form 
 (Zoning Action Applicant) 

Page 1 of 1  

Updated MAY 2024 
 

City of Pooler • Planning & Zoning Department • 100 US Hwy 80 SW • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-6652 
planning@pooler-ga.gov | www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

Hearing Information 

Zoning Action/Agenda Item 

Planning & Zoning Public Hearing/Meeting Date and Time 

City Council Public Hearing/Meeting Date and Time 

Disclosure Statement 

Have you made campaign contributions to one or more Pooler City Official(s), including the Mayor, Councilmembers, 
and/or Planning & Zoning Commissioners, during the past two years that, when combined, total an amount greater 
than $250.00? 

�  NO, I have not made any campaign contributions to one or more Pooler City Official(s) 
 over the past two years that, when combined, total an amount greater than $250.00. 

�  YES, I have made campaign contributions to one or more Pooler City Official(s) over the 
 past two years that, when combined, total an amount greater than $250.00 
 My contribution information is listed below: 

City Official Name    Title      Dollar Value       Description of Gift >$250 

City Official Name    Title      Dollar Value       Description of Gift >$250  

City Official Name                          Title      Dollar Value       Description of Gift >$250  

I attest that all information provided above is true to fact. 

Applicant Name        Applicant Signature Date 

Per GA § 36-67A-3, rezoning action applicants and opponents are required to disclose campaign contributions  
or gifts with an aggregate value of $250 or more made to any City Official within two years immediately 
preceding the filing of the application. City Officials include the Mayor, Councilmembers, and Planning &  
Zoning Commissioners. Rezoning action applicant disclosures shall be filed within ten days after the application 
for the rezoning action is first filed. If additional space is needed, please attach a second form. 

Attachment C

mailto:kdyer@pooler-ga.gov%20%7C%20www.pooler-ga.gov


Attachment C



LOCATION  H IGHL IGHTS

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

9
Attachment C



© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 TomTom 

SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

27
 C

ha
th

am
 C

en
te

r S
ou

th
, S

ui
te

 A
Sa

va
nn

ah
, G

A 
31

40
5

Ph
: (

91
2)

 2
32

-6
53

3
Fa

x:
 (9

12
) 2

33
-4

58
0

sa
va

nn
ah

@
em

c-
en

g.
co

m
w

w
w

.e
m

c-
en

g.
co

m
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
G

R
EE

N
VI

LL
E 

• S
AV

AN
N

AH
 • 

ST
AT

ES
BO

R
O

 • 
TH

O
M

AS
TO

N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
AL

TA
 / 

N
SP

S 
SU

R
VE

Y

8t
h 

G
.M

. D
IS

TR
IC

T
PO

O
LE

R
, C

H
AT

H
AM

 C
O

U
N

TY
, G

EO
R

G
IA

LO
T 

5 
 C

LE
AR

 L
AK

E 
VI

ST
A

VI
ST

A 
R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

24-0033
JRH

-
GRS

04/04/2024
JRT
NTS

4/17/2024

1
1

80' ####

-

###

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

THIS BOX IS RESERVED FOR THE SUPERIOR
COURT CLERKS FILING INFORMATION

SITE

O
F A UT HORIZ A T IO

N

CERT IFICA TE*G

EORGIA

*

E
M

C
Eng ine e r ing  S e r v ic

es
, I

nc
.Land Surveying

Firm No. 000051

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION
COMMITMENT NO: 1427.552-O COMMITMENT DATE: FEBRUARY 20, 2024

TO: VISTA ACQUISITIONS, LLC, A GEORGIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND  FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE
COMPANY.

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the 2021 Minimum
Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and
includes items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(a), 7(a), 7(b)(1), 7(c), 8, 9, 10, 11(a), 11(b), 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18,  of Table A thereof. The
fieldwork was completed on 04/04/2024.

This plat is a retracement of  an existing parcel or parcels of  land and does not
subdivide or create a new parcel or make any changes to any real property boundaries.
The recording information of  the documents, maps, plats, or other instruments which
created the parcel or parcels are stated hereon. RECORDATION OF THIS PLAT
DOES  NOT IM PLY APPR OVAL OF ANY LOCAL JUR I SDICTI ON,
AVAILABILITY OF PERMITS, COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL REGULATIONS
OR REQUIREMENTS, OR SUITABILITY FOR ANY USE OR PURPOSE OF THE
LAND. Furthermore, the undersigned land surveyor certif ies that this plat complies
with the minimum technical standards for property surveys in Georgia as set forth in
the rules and regulations of  the Georgia Board of  Registration f or Prof essional
Engineers and Land Surveyors and as set f orth in O.C.G.A. Section 15-6-67.

DRAFT

SURVEY NOTES
1. Horizontal Datum is Georgia State Plane Coordinate System of 1985, East

Zone, North American Datum of 1983 (NAD83).
2. Vertical Datum is North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD88).
3. Basis of Bearings, Horizontal Control, Vertical Control and some spot

elevations were obtained utilizing GPS (global positioning systems). The
equipment used to obtain this data was an eGPS 20TL Geodetic GNSS
GPS Receiver [RTK Accuracy (Horizontal: 8mm + 1ppm RMS) (Vertical:
15mm + 1ppm RMS)] with an X-PAD data collector receiving RTK
corrections via a Verizon Jetpack MiFi 6620L from the eGPS Solutions
Real Time Network. The technique used was RTK corrected
measurements from a Trimble VRS Real Time Network operated by eGPS
Solutions, Inc.

4. All deed book references shown hereon are recorded in the Clerk of
Superior Court's Office of Chatham County, Georgia.

5. This survey was prepared without the benefit of an abstract of title. Subject
and adjacent property owners' deed references were provided by EMC
Engineering Services, Inc. and are not guaranteed as to accuracy or
completeness.

6. Structures visible on the date of survey are shown hereon.
7. Locations are accurate only where dimensioned.
8. This property is located in Zone X, not a Special Flood Hazard Area per

the Federal Emergency Management Agency's Flood Insurance Rate Map
No. 13051C0107H; Effective Date: August 16, 2018. The flood hazard
lines as shown on this plat have been taken digitally from
http://hazards-fema.maps.arcgis.com, and have not been verified in the
field by EMC Engineering Services, Inc.

9. No person may copy, reproduce, distribute or alter this plat in whole or in
part without the written permission of EMC Engineering Services, Inc.

10. The term "Certification" as used in Rule 180-6-.09 (2) and (3) and relating
to professional engineering or land surveying services, as defined in
O.C.G.A. 43-15-2 (6) and (11), shall mean a signed statement based upon
facts and knowledge known to the registrant at the time of the survey and
is not a guarantee or warranty, either expressed or implied.

11. This survey is valid only if print has the original signature of the surveyor.
12. The utilities as shown are per the location of poles, manholes, valves,

pedestals, etc., existing drawings and information provided by utility
personnel. The surveyor makes no guarantee that the utilities shown
comprise all such utilities in the area, either in service or abandoned. The
surveyor further does not warrant that the utilities shown are in the exact
location indicated, although he does certify that they are located as
accurately as possible from the information available.

13. This Survey complies with both the rules of the Georgia Board of
Registration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) 15-6-67, in that where a
conflict exists between those two sets of specifications, the requirements
of law prevail.

14. All wetlands are under the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps. of Engineers
and/or the State of Georgia Department of Natural Resources. Lot owners
are subject to penalty by law for disturbance to these protected areas
without proper permit application and approval.

15. This Topographic Survey was prepared in conformity with The Technical
Standards for Surveys in Georgia as set forth in the Rules of the Georgia
Board of Registration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and
as defined in Rule 180-07-.07. The certification extends only to the
topographic aspects of this survey. This topographic survey does not
constitute a boundary survey and is not to be recorded.

16. The boundary, as shown, was taken from a survey by EMC.
17. There was no evidence of recent earth moving work, building construction,

or building additions observed in the process of conducting the fieldwork.
18. There were no proposed changes in street right of way lines made

available to the surveyor by the controlling jurisdiction. There was no
evidence of recent street or sidewalk construction or repairs observed in
the process of conducting the fieldwork.

19. There were no wetland delineation markers observed in the process of
conducting the fieldwork.

SURVEY DATA
Total Area: 14.844 Acres (646,615 Square Feet)
Plat Closure: 1 in 182,800
Field Precision:

This entire survey was completed using GPS to set control, the
Geomax Zoom90 Robotic Total Station to locate property corners and
improvements.  The field data for this boundary survey has a Relative
Positional Accuracy of 0.08 feet or less, horizontally at the 95%
confidence level.

Adjusted by: No adjustment
Equipment used: Geomax Zoom90 Robotic Total Station

eGPS 20TL Geodetic GNSS GPS Receiver
on the eGPS Network

Field Work Completed on: 04/04/2024

       REFERENCES
DB 41Q, PG 1 DB 42J, PG 442 DB 85Q, PG 495
DB 88E, PG 575 DB 88M, PG 613 DB 88M, PG 615
DB 88Q, PG 293 DB 90E, PG 435 DB 108N, PG 192
DB 147G, PG 543 DB 196D, PG 152 DB 216N, PG 608
DB 251C, PG 45 DB 273J, PG 745 DB 342D, PG 247
DB 342D, PG 250 DB 1759, PG 166 DB 1818, PG 396
DB 2063, PG 375 DB 2658, PG 674 DB 2658, PG 682
DB 2667, PG 279 DB 2743 , PG 190 DB 2842, PG 2
DB 2843, PG 314 DB 2844, PG 523 DB 2850, PG 582
DB 2991, PG 64 DB 3007, PG 439 DB 3044, PG 246
DB 3138, PG 208 PB 1, PG 224 PB 17P, PG 79
PB 28, PG 69 PB 51, PG 650 PB 52, PG 690
PB 53, PG 278 PB 53, PG 480 PB B, PG 50
PB C, PG 147 PB Q, PG 59 PB Q, PG 98
PB T, PG 75 PB V, PG 5 PB Y, PG 30

TABLE 'A' SURVEY REQUIREMENTS
1. Monuments placed (or a reference monument or witness to the corner) at all major corners of the

boundary of the surveyed property, unless already marked or referenced by existing monuments or
witnesses in close proximity to the corner.

2. Address(es) of the surveyed property if disclosed in documents provided to or obtained by the
surveyor, or observed while conducting the fieldwork.

3. Flood zone classification (with proper annotation based on federal Flood Insurance Rate Maps or the
state or local equivalent) depicted by scaled map location and graphic plotting only.

4. Gross land area (and other areas if specified by the client).

5. Vertical relief with the source of information (e.g., ground survey, aerial map), contour interval, datum,
with originating benchmark, when appropriate.

6(a). If the current zoning classification, setback requirements, the height and floor space area restrictions,
and parking requirements specific to the surveyed property are set forth in a zoning report or letter
provided to the surveyor by the client or the client's designated representative, list the above items on
the plat or map and identify the date and source of the report or letter.

7(a). Exterior dimensions of all buildings at ground level.

7(c). Measured height of all buildings above grade at a location specified by the client. If no location is
specified, the point of measurement shall be identified.

8. Substantial features observed in the process of conducting the fieldwork (in addition to the
improvements and features required pursuant to Section 5 above) (e.g., parking lots, billboards,
signs, swimming pools, landscaped areas, substantial areas of refuse).

9. Number and type (e.g., disabled, motorcycle, regular, and other marked specialized types) of clearly
identifiable parking spaces on surface parking areas, lots, and in parking structures. Striping of
clearly identifiable parking spaces on surface parking areas and lots.

10. As designated by the client, a determination of the relationship and location of certain division or party
walls with respect to adjoining properties.

11. Evidence of underground utilities existing on or serving the surveyed property (in addition to the
observed evidence of utilities required pursuant to Section 5.E.iv.) as determined by:

(a) plans and/or reports provided by client (with reference as to the sources of information)
(b) markings coordinated by the surveyor pursuant to a private utility locate request.

Note to the client, insurer, and lender - With regard to Table A, item 11, information from the sources
checked above will be combined with observed evidence of utilities pursuant to Section 5.E.iv. to
develop a view of the underground utilities. However, lacking excavation, the exact location of
underground features cannot be accurately, completely, and reliably depicted. In addition, in some
jurisdictions, 811 or other similar utility locate requests from surveyors may be ignored or result in
an incomplete response, in which case the surveyor shall note on the plat or map how this affected
the surveyor's assessment of the location of the utilities. Where additional or more detailed
information is required, the client is advised that excavation may be necessary.

12. As specified by the client, Governmental Agency survey-related requirements (e.g., HUD surveys,
surveys for leases on Bureau of Land Management managed lands). The relevant survey
requirements are to be provided by the client or client's designated representative.

13. Names of adjoining owners according to current tax records. If more than one owner, identify the first
owner's name listed in the tax records followed by “et al.”

14. As specified by the client, distance to the nearest intersecting street.

15. Rectified orthophotography, photogrammetric mapping, remote sensing, airborne/mobile laser
scanning and other similar products, tools or technologies as the basis for showing the location of
certain features (excluding boundaries) where ground measurements are not otherwise necessary to
locate those features to an appropriate and acceptable accuracy relative to a nearby boundary. The
surveyor must (a) discuss the ramifications of such methodologies (e.g., the potential precision and
completeness of the data gathered thereby) with the insurer, lender, and client prior to the
performance of the survey, and (b) place a note on the face of the survey explaining the source, date,
precision, and other relevant qualifications of any such data.

16. Evidence of recent earth moving work, building construction, or building additions observed in the
process of conducting the fieldwork.

17. Proposed changes in street right of way lines, if such information is made available to the surveyor by
the controlling jurisdiction. Evidence of recent street or sidewalk construction or repairs observed in
the process of conducting the fieldwork.

18. Pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 (and applicable selected Table A items, excluding Table A item 1),
include as part of the survey any plottable offsite (i.e., appurtenant) easements disclosed in
documents provided to or obtained by the surveyor.

ALL THAT CERTAIN LOT, TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE, LYING AND BEING LOCATED IN CHATHAM
COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND SHOWN AS LOT 5 ON THAT PLAT ENTITLED "A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF CLEAR
LAKE RESERVE, BEING TRACTS 1 & 2, FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE RYALS TRACT AND PARCEL E-3, BEING
A PORTION OF PARCEL ''E" OF THE MORGAN TRACT "Q", 8TH G.M. DISTRICT, CITY OF POOLER, CHATHAM
COUNTY, GEORGIA", PREPARED BY THOMAS & HUTTON AND MATTHEW D. JONES, G.R.L.S. NO. 3338,
DATED NOVEMBER 17, 2021, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 53, PAGE 278, CHATHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA,
RECORDS, SAID PLAT BEING INCORPORATED HEREIN AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY THIS REFERENCE.

ALL THAT CERTAIN LOT, TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE, LYING AND BEING LOCATED IN CHATHAM
COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND SHOWN AS LOT 5 ON THAT PLAT ENTITLED "A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF CLEAR
LAKE RESERVE, BEING TRACTS 1 & 2, FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE RYALS TRACT AND PARCEL E-3, BEING A
PORTION OF PARCEL ''E" OF THE MORGAN TRACT "Q", 8TH G.M. DISTRICT, CITY OF POOLER, CHATHAM
COUNTY, GEORGIA" AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND, AT THE SOUTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF KITA
AVENUE, SAID POINT HAVING A NORTHING OF 767328.5590 AND AN EASTING OF 936066.7320 AND IS THE
POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT;

THENCE S 87°12'47” E A DISTANCE OF 52.67' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 30.07', AN ARC LENGTH OF
46.30', A CHORD BEARING OF S 42°58'36" E, AND A DISTANCE OF 41.86' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT
FOUND ON SAID CURVE;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 972.64', AN ARC LENGTH OF
111.44', A CHORD BEARING OF S 04°31'24" W, AND A DISTANCE OF 111.37' TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR SET ON
SAID CURVE;

THENCE S 07°48'36” W A DISTANCE OF 353.81' TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR SET;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 520.72', AN ARC LENGTH OF
419.14', A CHORD BEARING OF S 30°53'08" W, AND A DISTANCE OF 407.91' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT
FOUND ON SAID CURVE;

THENCE S 54°20'06” W A DISTANCE OF 27.77' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 518.47', AN ARC LENGTH OF
302.51', A CHORD BEARING OF S 70°40'10" W, AND A DISTANCE OF 298.24' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT
FOUND ON SAID CURVE;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 245.69', AN ARC LENGTH OF
90.53', A CHORD BEARING OF N 82°18'16" W, AND A DISTANCE OF 90.02' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT
FOUND ON SAID CURVE;

THENCE N 71°55'27” W A DISTANCE OF 148.32' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 30.51', AN ARC LENGTH OF
44.27', A CHORD BEARING OF N 29°15'46" W, AND A DISTANCE OF 40.49' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT
FOUND ON SAID CURVE;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 1031.95', AN ARC LENGTH OF
95.58', A CHORD BEARING OF N 10°27'57" E, AND A DISTANCE OF 95.55' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT
FOUND ON SAID CURVE;

THENCE N 07°48'17” E A DISTANCE OF 821.91' TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR SET;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 30.00', AN ARC LENGTH OF
46.68', A CHORD BEARING OF N 52°23'07" E, AND A DISTANCE OF 42.11' TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR SET ON SAID
CURVE;

THENCE S 83°02'36” E A DISTANCE OF 505.67' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 1085.27', AN ARC LENGTH OF
75.11, A CHORD BEARING OF S 10°27'57" E, AND A DISTANCE OF 75.09' TO A 3x3" CONCRETE MONUMENT
FOUND ON SAID CURVE; TO THE SAID POINT OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY CONTAINS 14.844 ACRE (646,615 SF).

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS SURVEYED)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS RECORDED)

Exception numbers 1 - 2 and 4 - 9 are not survey-related items.

3. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title
that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land.(NONE OF THE
ABOVER WERE OBSERVED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY)

10. Easement to Savannah Electric and Power Company, dated July 6, 1945, recorded August 18,
1945, in Deed Book 41-Q,  page 1, Records of the Clerk of the Superior Court of Chatham County,
Georgia; as affected by Easement from Savannah Electric and Power Company, dated June 7,
1965, recorded July 6, 1965, in Deed Book 88-Q, page 293, aforesaid records.(UNPLOTTABLE.)

11. Easement from J.E. Tuten to Savannah Electric and Power Company, dated January 10, 1946,
recorded April 24, 1946, in Deed Book 42-J, page 442, aforesaid records; as affected by Easement
from Savannah Electric and Power Company, dated June 7, 1965, recorded July 6, 1965, in Deed
Book 88-Q, page 293, aforesaid records.(UNPLOTTABLE.)

12. Well Agreement between Joseph Earl Tuten and Jimmie L. Bryant, dated February 15, 1963,
recorded February 19, 1963, in Deed Book 85-Q, page 495, aforesaid records.( RATHER  THE
DEED AFFECTS THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS INDETERMINATE,LOCATION OF WELL IS
UNPLOTTABLE.)

13. Easement from John J. Rauers to the Town of Pooler, Georgia, dated April 16, 1965, recorded in
Deed Book 88-E, page 575, aforesaid records.( DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

14. Ingress and Egress Easement and Oxidation Pond Easement contained in that certain Warranty
Deed from Ernest C. Bull and Mamie E. Bull, individually and trading as Annette's Dairy to Joseph E.
Tuten, dated June 11, 1965, recorded June 11, 1965, in Deed Book 88-M, page 613, aforesaid
records.( DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

15. Ingress and Egress Easement and Oxidation Pond Easement contained in that certain Warranty
Deed from Joseph E. Tuten to Blakewood R. Ryals, dated June 11, 1965, recorded June 11, 1965, in Deed
Book 88-M, page 615, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

16. Easement from Joe E. Tuten to Savannah Electric and Power Company, recorded May 6, 1966, in
Deed Book 90-E, page  435, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

17. Easement from Joseph E. Tuten to Savannah Electric and Power Company, dated April 21, 1977,
recorded May 9, 1977,   in Deed Book 108-N, page 192, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT AFFECT
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

18. Easement from Blakewood R. Ryals to Savannah Electric and Power Company, dated February 9,
1987, recorded October 5, 1990, in Deed Book 147-G, page 543, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT
AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

19. Right of Way Deed from Blakewood R. Ryals to Chatham County, dated August 27, 1998,
recorded August 31, 1998,       in Deed Book 196-D, page 152, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT
AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

20. Utility Easement from Blakewood R. Ryals to The Mayor and Councilmen of the City of Pooler,
Georgia, dated November 1, 2000, recorded November 8, 2000, in Deed Book 216-N, page 608,
aforesaid records.(DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

21. Right of Way Deed from Blakewood R. Ryals to City of Pooler, dated April 28, 2003, recorded May 9,
2003, in Deed Book 251-C, page 45, aforesaid records.( DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY.)

22. Utility Easement Agreement between Blakewood R. Ryals and The City of Pooler, dated June 30,
2004, recorded July 23, 2004, in Deed Book 273-J, page 745, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT
AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

23. Utility Easement Agreement between Blakewood R. Ryals and The City of Pooler, dated May 7,
2008, recorded June 19, 2008, in Deed Book 342-D, page 247, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT
AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

24. Utility Easement Agreement between Blakewood R. Ryals and The City of Pooler, dated May 7,
2008, in Deed Book 342- D, page 250, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY.)

25. Encroachment Agreement for Easement from Georgia Power Company to Pooler Parkway of GA,
LLC, dated October 31, 2019, recorded January 7, 2020, in Deed Book 1818, page 396, aforesaid
records.( DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

26. Underground Easement from Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC to Georgia Power Company, dated
July 16, 2020, recorded September 15, 2020, in Deed Book 2063, page 375, aforesaid
records.(UNPLOTTABLE)

27. Underground Easement from Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC to Georgia Power Company, dated
August 25, 2021, recorded December 28, 2021, in Deed Book 2658, page 674, aforesaid
records.(AFFECTS THE SUBJECT PROPERTY; BLANKET IN NATURE)

28. Underground Easement from Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC to Georgia Power Company, dated
August 25, 2021, recorded December 28, 2021, in Deed Book 2658, page 682, aforesaid
records.( AFFECTS THE SUBJECT PROPERTY; BLANKET IN NATURE.)

29. Underground Easement from Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC to Georgia Power Company, dated
October 5, 2021, recorded January 3, 2022, in Deed Book 2667, page 279, aforesaid
records.(DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

30. Encroachment Agreement for Easement from Georgia Power Company to Pooler Parkway of GA,
LLC, dated February 24, 2022, recorded March 17, 2022, in Deed Book 2743, page 190, aforesaid
records.(DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

31. Stormwater Facility/Infrastructure Maintenance Agreement between Pooler Parkway of GA, LC and
the City of Pooler, Georgia, dated May 5, 2022, recorded June 24, 2022, in Deed Book 2842, page 2
,aforesaid records.( DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)

32. Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Clear Lake Reserve by Pooler Parkway of
GA, LLC, dated June 27, 2022, recorded June 27, 2022, in Deed Book 2843, page 314, aforesaid
records; as affected by Memorandum of Agreement Regarding Declaration of Covenants,
Conditions and Restrictions for Clear Lake Reserve among Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC, Clear Lake
(GA) Owner I LLC and Clear Lake Reserve Property Owners Association, Inc., dated June 29, 2022,
recorded July 6,2022, in Deed Book 2850, page 582, aforesaid records.( AFFECTS THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY; BLANKET IN NATURE.)

33. Quitclaim Deed from Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC to Clear Lake Reserve Property Owners
Association, Inc., dated June 28, 2022, recorded June 28, 2022, in Deed Book 2844, page 523,
aforesaid records.( AFFECTS THE SUBJECT PROPERTY; BLANKET IN NATURE.)

34. Underground Easement from Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC to Georgia Power Company, dated
July 21, 2020, recorded December 23, 2022, in Deed Book 2991, page 64, aforesaid records.
(UNPLOTTABLE)

35. Signage Easement Agreement between Clear Lake Reserve Property Owners Association, Inc. and
Pooler Parkway of GA, dated January 18, 2023, recorded January 19, 2023, in Deed Book 3007,
page 439, aforesaid records.(DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY)

36. Easement Agreement between Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC and HGGW, LLC, dated March 10,
2023, recorded March 13, 2023, in Deed Book 3044, page 246, aforesaid records. (AFFECTS THE
SUBJECT PROPERTY; BLANKET IN NATURE.)

37. Declaration of Restrictive Covenant by Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC, dated July 3, 2023, recorded
July 11, 2023, in Deed Book 3138, page 208, aforesaid records. (AFFECTS THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY;BLANKET IN NATURE.)

38. All matters shown on the following:

a. Plat Book B, page 50; (UNPLOTTABLE)
b. Plat Book C, page 147; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)
c. Plat Book Q, page 59; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)
d. Plat Book Q, page 98; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)
e. Plat Book T, page 75; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)
f. Plat Book V, page 5; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)
g. Plat Book Y, page 30; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY)
h. Historical Book 1, page 224; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY)
i. Plat Book 17P, page 79A; ( DOES NOT EFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY)
j. Plat Book 28, page 69; (DOES NOT AFFECT SUBJECT PROPERTY.)
k. Plat Book 51, page 650; (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.)
l. Plat Book 52, page 690; and (DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY)
m.Plat Book 53, page 278, ( AFFECTS  THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AS SHOWN.)

SCHEDULE B, PART II EXCEPTIONS 

NOT PROVIDED

ZONING INFORMATION

ENVIRONMENTAL - MARINE - CIVIL - SURVEY
EMC ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.

ALTA / NSPS SURVEY

0 POOLER CROSSROAD
LOT 5 CLEAR LAKE VISTA

PIN; 51011F01005

FOR

SAVANNAH, GEORGIA 31419
DATE: APRIL 17,2024

EMC PROJECT NO. 24-0033

LEGEND

IRON REBAR FOUND

POINT OF BEGINNING

POINT OF COMMENCING

PROPERTY ID NUMBER

NOW OR FORMERLY

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

METES AND BOUNDS N 47°45'54" E - 497.06'

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PLAT BOOK PB

DEED BOOK DB

PAGE PG

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

NOT TO SCALE N.T.S.

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

LIGHT POLE

WATER MANHOLE

5/8" IRON REBAR SET W/CAP

UNDERGROUND FIBEROPTIC

POLY(VINYL CHLORIDE) PIPE

INVERT ELEVATION

ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

GRATE INLET

UNDERGROUND COMM. BOX

REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE

ELECTRIC SERVICE METER

STORM DRAINAGE LINE

FLARED END SECTION

CONCRETE SURFACE

ASPHALT SURFACE

TEMPORARY BENCHMARK FOUND

CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND

ELECTRIC STUB OUT

UTILITY EASEMENT 

MINOR CONTOUR

MAJOR CONTOUR

CORRUGATED PLASTIC PIPE

SEWER STUB OUT

WATER LINE MARKER

FIRE HYDRANT

MAG NAIL WASHER FOUND

WATER VALVE

WATER METER

TAG LABEL L# or C#

Attachment C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O:\2024\24-0033 CLEAR LAKE VISTA ALTA\DWG\24-0033V-A01.DWG 4/18/2024 2:40 PM 4/18/2024 2:40 PM4/18/2024 2:40 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
GA REG. L. S. LIC. NO. 3119										DATE					DATE					

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
No.  3119

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
*

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
*

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
CIVIL MARINE ENVIRONMENTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
P.O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
WMH

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
IE:12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
ETR

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
UCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
FES

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
CMF 3x3

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
ESO

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
SSO

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
GI

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
WLMK

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
MNWF

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
WM



T.B.M.

T.B.M.

C8

C9

C1

C
2

C3

N
 0

7°
48

'1
7"

 E
 - 

82
1.

91
'

S 83°02'36" E - 505.67'

S 
07

°4
8'

36
" W

 - 
35

3.
81

'

C4

C5

C6

C
7

L1

L2

L3

SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

27
 C

ha
th

am
 C

en
te

r S
ou

th
, S

ui
te

 A
Sa

va
nn

ah
, G

A 
31

40
5

Ph
: (

91
2)

 2
32

-6
53

3
Fa

x:
 (9

12
) 2

33
-4

58
0

sa
va

nn
ah

@
em

c-
en

g.
co

m
w

w
w

.e
m

c-
en

g.
co

m
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
G

R
EE

N
VI

LL
E 

• S
AV

AN
N

AH
 • 

ST
AT

ES
BO

R
O

 • 
TH

O
M

AS
TO

N

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
AL

TA
 / 

N
SP

S 
SU

R
VE

Y

8t
h 

G
.M

. D
IS

TR
IC

T
PO

O
LE

R
, C

H
AT

H
AM

 C
O

U
N

TY
, G

EO
R

G
IA

LO
T 

5 
 C

LE
AR

 L
AK

E 
VI

ST
A

VI
ST

A 
R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

24-0033
JRH

-
GRS

04/04/2024
JRT

1" = 60.0001' 
4/17/2024

1
1

60' 60.0001' 

60.0001' 

30'

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

THIS BOX IS RESERVED FOR THE SUPERIOR
COURT CLERKS FILING INFORMATION

O
F A UT HORIZ A T IO

N

CERT IFICA TE*G

EORGIA

*

E
M

C
Eng ine e r ing  S e r v ic

es
, I

nc
.Land Surveying

Firm No. 000051

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION
To: INSURED

TITLE COMPANY & POLICY #

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the 2021 Minimum
Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and
includes items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(a), 7(a), 7(b)(1), 7(c), 8, 9, 10, 11(a), 11(b), 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18,  of Table A thereof. The
fieldwork was completed on 04/04/2024.

This plat is a retracement of  an existing parcel or parcels of  land and does not
subdivide or create a new parcel or make any changes to any real property boundaries.
The recording information of  the documents, maps, plats, or other instruments which
created the parcel or parcels are stated hereon. RECORDATION OF THIS PLAT
DOES  NOT IM PLY APPR OVAL OF ANY LOCAL JUR I SDICTI ON,
AVAILABILITY OF PERMITS, COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL REGULATIONS
OR REQUIREMENTS, OR SUITABILITY FOR ANY USE OR PURPOSE OF THE
LAND. Furthermore, the undersigned land surveyor certif ies that this plat complies
with the minimum technical standards for property surveys in Georgia as set forth in
the rules and regulations of  the Georgia Board of  Registration f or Prof essional
Engineers and Land Surveyors and as set f orth in O.C.G.A. Section 15-6-67.

DRAFT

Attachment C

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
LOT 5 14,844 ACRES (646,615 SQ. FT.) N/F POOLER PARKWAY OF GA, LLC, 0 POOLER CROSSROADS  LOT 5 CLEAR LAKE RESERVE PHASE 1  PIN:51011F01005 DB 1759, PG 0166 FLOOD ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
IE: 17.82 6" CPP SE

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
IE: 16.22 6" CPP N

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
PUMP STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT  EXCEPTION 38 M

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
20' SEWER EASEMENT  EXCEPTION 38 M

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
20' SEWER EASEMENT EXCEPTION 38 M

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
TOP OF DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
TOP OF DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
TOP OF DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
TOP OF DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
CLEARLAKE WAY (VARIABLE R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
KITA AVENUE (60' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
EAST MARKETPLACE (60' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
TOE OF DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
O:\2024\24-0033 CLEAR LAKE VISTA ALTA\DWG\24-0033V-A01.DWG 4/18/2024 2:41 PM 4/18/2024 2:41 PM4/18/2024 2:41 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
GA REG. L. S. LIC. NO. 3119										DATE					DATE					

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
No.  3119

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
*

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
*

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
GA SPC EAST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
GRID NORTH



Page 1 of 10 

Prepared by and return to: 

Thompson Thrift Development, Inc 

901 Wabash Avenue, Suite 300 

Terre Haute, IN 47807 

 

ENCROACHMENT AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

This ENCROACHMENT AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made 

and entered into as of      (“Effective Date”), by and between TTRES AT 

POOLER GA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, whose mailing address is 901 Wabash Avenue, 

Suite 300, Terre Haute, IN 47807 (“Grantee”), and the CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA (“City”). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, Grantee is developing a multi-family residential community on certain property 

legally described and depicted on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference (“Residential 

Property”); and 

WHEREAS, City is in the process of acquiring a certain portion of the Residential Property, as 

legally described and depicted on Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated by reference, to construct a 

right-of-way (“Right-Of-Way”); and 

WHEREAS, City’s construction of the Right-Of-Way will happen subsequent to Grantee’s 

construction of a certain access drive on the Residential Property, as legally described and depicted on 

Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated by reference, which will be located within the future Right-Of-

Way (“Access Drive”); and 

WHEREAS, the Access Drive will contain a median, landscaping, retaining wall, and monument 

sign, together with electrical and irrigation utilities to serve the monument sign and landscaping, 

respectively, as depicted on Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated by reference (collectively, the 

“Improvements”); 

WHEREAS, City requires the parties to enter into this Agreement ensuring Grantee’s continued 

maintenance of the Improvements after City’s acquisition and construction of the Right-Of-Way; and  

WHEREAS, Grantee desires to ensure continued access to the Residential Property throughout 

City’s construction of the Right-Of-Way. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, and for other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor and Grantee do hereby 

covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Use of Encroachment Area.  For and in consideration of the true and faithful performance 

of the mutual covenants herein contained, City hereby grants to Grantee a license to construct, install, use, 

operate, maintain, repair and replace the Improvements that encroach upon, use and/or occupy portions of 

the space under, and/or above the Right-Of-Way. The location and description of the encroachment is more 

particularly described in Exhibit E, attached hereto and incorporated by reference (the "Encroachment 

Area"). The City also grants Grantee the right to install irrigation, utilities and lights to complement the 

Improvements in the Encroachment Area and the rights of access, ingress and egress over the City Right-

Of-Way in order to provide Grantee and its contractors, agents and representatives access to the 

Encroachment Area and the Improvements for all of the purposes set forth herein.  



Page 2 of 10 

2. Ownership of Improvements.  The Improvements shall remain the property of Grantee and 

Grantee shall take full responsibility for maintenance and/or repair of the Improvements, and there shall be 

no cost to City for the purchase, installation, operation, maintenance, and/or removal of said Improvements.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event City knowingly damages any portion of the Improvements 

during City’s construction of the Right-Of-Way, City shall promptly repair the damage to the Improvements 

at City’s sole cost and expense. In the event Grantee believes City unknowingly caused damages to any 

portion of the Improvements, Grantee shall deliver written notice to City detailing such damages.  City shall 

have ten (10) days from the receipt of such written notice to inspect the damages and confirm whether City 

intends to repair the damages.    

 

3. Removal of Improvements.  If Grantee, its heirs, successors and/or assigns desires to 

remove the Improvements and terminate this Agreement, Grantee shall, at the option of City and at no 

expense to City, restore the Right-Of-Way by filling in any holes or other damage by the removal of the 

Improvements, to a condition acceptable to City, and in accordance with then existing City specifications. 

It is understood and agreed to by Grantee that if this Agreement terminates and Grantee fails to remove the 

Improvements, Grantee hereby gives City permission to remove the Improvements and supporting 

structures and agrees to reimburse City for the costs expended by City to remove such Improvements. 

 

4. Use by City.  City may enter and utilize the Encroachment Area at any time for the purpose 

of installing or maintaining improvements necessary for the health, safety and welfare of the public or for 

any other public purpose. In this regard, Grantee understands and agrees that City shall bear no 

responsibility or liability for damage or disruption of Improvements installed by Grantee. 

 

5. Maintenance of Right-Of-Way.  The City shall remain fully responsible for maintenance 

and/or repair of the Right-Of-Way, and there shall be no cost to Grantee for the maintenance and/or repair 

of the Right-Of-Way.  In the event Grantee believes that City fails to maintain the Right-Of-Way in 

accordance with the then-prevailing local codes and ordinances, Grantee shall deliver written notice to City 

detailing such failure. City shall have ten (10) days from the receipt of such written notice to inspect the 

failure and confirm whether City intends to perform the maintenance.    

 

6. Maintenance of Access Drive.  Grantee shall remain fully responsible for maintenance 

and/or repair of the Access Drive, and there shall be no cost to City for the maintenance and/or repair of 

the Access Drive.  In the event Grantee believes that City fails to maintain the Access Drive in accordance 

with the then-prevailing local codes and ordinances, Grantee shall deliver written notice to City detailing 

such failure. City shall have ten (10) days from the receipt of such written notice to inspect the failure and 

confirm whether City intends to perform the maintenance.  In the event that Grantee fails to maintain the 

Access Drive in accordance with the standards of a Class A multifamily project similar to Grantee’s project 

on the Residential Property, City shall have the right, after ten (10) days’ written notice and a failure to cure 

by Grantee, to perform such maintenance on the Access Drive. 

 

7. No Ownership.  Grantee understands and agrees that the granting of any encroachment 

rights pursuant to this Agreement grants no ownership rights to any real property making up a portion of 

the City’s Right-Of-Way.  

 

8. Compliance with Laws.  Grantee agrees to comply fully with all applicable federal, state 

and local laws, statutes, ordinances, codes or regulations in connection with the construction, operation and 

maintenance of said Improvements. 

 

9. Recording.  Grantee agrees to the recording of this Agreement in the Chatham County 

Clerk's Office in order to memorialize of record the understanding between the parties hereto. Upon 



Page 3 of 10 

removal and non-replacement of the said Improvements, the parties agree to record a termination of 

encroachment agreement to remove this Agreement of record. 

 

10. Access to Residential Property. At all times during City’s construction of the Right-Of-

Way, City shall ensure that access to the Residential Property remains unobstructed. 

 

11. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their 

successors and assigns, including subsequent owners of the Improvements, in perpetuity or until a 

termination of encroachment agreement signed by both parties is recorded. Grantee shall not assign, sub-

license, or otherwise convey the license to any other party without the prior written consent of the City, 

whose consent can be withheld in the City's sole discretion, but not unreasonably so. 

 

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Georgia. 

 

13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and 

understandings of the parties in connection therewith. 

 

14. No Waiver. Any failure by a party hereto to assist upon the strict performance by the other 

party of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any of the provisions 

hereof, and such priority, and not withstanding any such failure shall have the right thereafter to insist upon 

the strict performance by the other party of the provisions of this Agreement to be performed by the other 

party. 

 

15. Enforceability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable as against 

any person or under certain circumstances, the remainder of this Agreement and applicability of such 

provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. Each provision of this Agreement 

except as otherwise herein provided, shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURES BEGIN ON FOLLOWING PAGE. 

  



Page 4 of 10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantee has caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and 

year first above written. 

Grantee: 

 

TTRES GA POOLER LAND, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 

 

 

By: ____________________________ 

 

Name: __________________________ 

 

Title: __________________________ 

 

                                       

STATE OF INDIANA  ) 

   ) ss. 

COUNTY OF   ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ___________, 2024, 

by ___________________ as ___________________ of TTRES GA POOLER LAND, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 My commission expires ___________________________________. 

 

 My county of residence is__________________________________. 

 

(SEAL)            

 

___________________________________ 

    Notary Public 

 

 

[Signatures Continue on Next Page] 

 

 

  



Page 5 of 10 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City has caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year 

first above written. 

 

CITY: 

 

_______________________,  

a ______________________ 

 

By: _______________________ 

Name: _____________________ 

Title: ______________________ 

 

STATE OF _____________________  ) 

   ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ___________________  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 

2024, by ___________________ as ___________________ of ________________, a 

_________________. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 My commission expires ___________________________________. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)            

 

___________________________________ 

    Notary Public 

 

 

  



Page 6 of 10 

EXHIBIT A  

Residential Property 

 

 

 

  



L E G A L   D E S C R I P T I O N 

                                                                    

     A PORTION OF A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN OR BEING IN THE 7TH. G.M.D., CITY OF 
POOLER, CHATHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:                       

BEGINNING AT A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET ON THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY 
AND ON THE COMMON PROPERTY LINE TO WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY AND 
SOUTHWEST QUADRANT DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC. SAID CAPPED IRON PIPE SET HAVING A 
GEORGIA STATE PLANE COORDINATE IN THE EAST ZONE OF NORTH=754903.79' AND EAST=931470.29' 
NAD 1983. THENCE SOUTH 30 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.78 FEET 
ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 59 
DEGREES 15 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 34.03 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT 
OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 30 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 34 
SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 22.01 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER 
PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE NORTH 59 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 28 SECONDS EAST FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 34.10 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL 
FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 30 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 186.16 FEET 
ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE ALONG A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 138.50 FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 101.94 FEET, BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD OF SOUTH 09 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 
99.66 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE 
SOUTH 30 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 9.49 FEET ALONG THE 
WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE 
RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 144.54 FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 105.27 FEET, BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD OF SOUTH 35 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 01 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 102.96 FEET ALONG 
THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 30 DEGREES 40 
MINUTES 28 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 83.28 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF 
POOLER  PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 
173.69  FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 71.30 FEET, BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD OF NORTH 78 
DEGREES 08 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.80 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT 
OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 30 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 34 SECONDS EAST 
FOR A  DISTANCE OF 82.24 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL 
FOUND;  THENCE SOUTH 73 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST FOR A  DISTANCE OF 32.58 FEET 
ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND;  THENCE SOUTH 30 
DEGREES 44 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 101.02 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT 
OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 14 
SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 46.62 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER    
PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND;  THENCE SOUTH 30 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST FOR A      
DISTANCE OF 499.74 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL 
FOUND; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 5087.00 FEET AND AN ARC 
LENGTH OF 149.39 FEET, BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD OF SOUTH 29 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 53 
SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 149.39 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER 
PARKWAY TO A  NAIL FOUND; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 76.72    
FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 26.98 FEET, BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD OF SOUTH 50 DEGREES 53 
MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 26.84 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF 
POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 5.07 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL 



FOUND;  THENCE SOUTH 28 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST FOR A  DISTANCE OF 49.96 FEET 
ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE NORTH 61 
DEGREES 57 MINUTES 49 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 18.92 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT 
OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 75.62 FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 34.02 FEET, BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD OF NORTH 
73 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 04 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 33.73 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN 
RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND;  THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 5107.00 FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 237.61 FEET, BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD OF SOUTH 27 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 34 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 237.58 FEET ALONG 
THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE NORTH 64 DEGREES 24 
MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST FOR A  DISTANCE OF 13.01 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF 
POOLER PARKWAY TO A NAIL FOUND; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 
5120.00  FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 60.92 FEET, BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD  OF SOUTH 25 
DEGREES 21 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.92 FEET ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT 
OF WAY OF POOLER PARKWAY TO A 1/2" CAPPED REBAR SET; THENCE SOUTH 77 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 
15 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 85.70 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF WESTBROOK AT     
SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 1/2" CAPPED REBAR SET; THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 17 
MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 171.08 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES 02 
MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 33.82 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 55 DEGREES 38 
MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 47.65 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES 49 
MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.33 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT;  THENCE NORTH 25 DEGREES 30 
MINUTES 38 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 19.24 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 1/2" CAPPED REBAR SET; THENCE SOUTH 86 
DEGREES 08 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 23.60 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE 
OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 74 DEGREES 56 
MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 44.54 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 19 DEGREES 29 
MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 94.49 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 16 
MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 65.90 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 55 DEGREES 11 
MINUTES 25 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 58.00 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 1/2" CAPPED REBAR SET; THENCE SOUTH 74 
DEGREES 20 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.94 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE 
OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 64 DEGREES 05 
MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 43.60 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 81 DEGREES 01 
MINUTES 42 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 53.66 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 38 DEGREES 53 
MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 52.03 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 57 DEGREES 47 
MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 79.60 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 84 DEGREES 44 
MINUTES 34 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 83.29 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 



WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET; THENCE NORTH 
50 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 37 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 48.57 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY 
LINE OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 
59 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 31.59 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 54 DEGREES 51 
MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 43.43 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 49 
MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 68.28 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 41 DEGREES 09 
MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 39.60 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET; THENCE NORTH 
60 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 66.87 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY 
LINE OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 30 DEGREES 
12 MINUTES 37 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 45.86 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A PONT; THENCE NORTH 36 DEGREES 54 
MINUTES 22 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 48.26 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 20 DEGREES 54 
MINUTES 12 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 91.12 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 27 DEGREES 53 
MINUTES 01 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 57.41 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET; THENCE NORTH 
21 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 73.34 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY 
LINE OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 29 DEGREES 
08 MINUTES 01 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 90.30 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 35 DEGREES 57 
MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 109.13 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 37 DEGREES 03 
MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 123.09 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 46 DEGREES 19 
MINUTES 07 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.50 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 14 DEGREES 51 
MINUTES 08 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 69.36 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET; THENCE NORTH 
01 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 115.51 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY 
LINE OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES 
55 MINUTES 02 SECONDS WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 43.95 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 25 
MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 47.32 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET; THENCE NORTH 
17 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 52 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 41.45 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE 
OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 31 DEGREES 57 
MINUTES 15 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 57.23 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 43 DEGREES 16 
MINUTES 01 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 44.37 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 46 DEGREES 57 
MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 53.89 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 37 
MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 34.50 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 



WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 71 DEGREES 00 
MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 212.02 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET; THENCE NORTH 
67 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 77.71 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE 
OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 11 DEGREES 02 
MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 36.15 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 76 DEGREES 23 
MINUTES 49 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 56.61 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 20 
MINUTES 14 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 96.88 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF 
WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET; THENCE SOUTH 
82 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 21.20 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE 
OF WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 54 DEGREES 17 
MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 0.71 FEET ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE OF WESTBROOK 
AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY TO A 3/4" CAPPED IRON PIPE SET AND THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; TOGETHER WITH AND SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, EASEMENTS, ANDRESTRICTIONS OF 
RECORD. SAID PROPERTY CONTAINS 22.99 ACRES MORE OR LESS.               

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 10 

EXHIBIT B  

Right-Of-Way 

 

 

 

  



  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 



Page 8 of 10 

EXHIBIT C  

Access Drive 

 

 

 

  



SWIMMING POOL
2,047 SF

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

164.61'

R/W MARKER

PP

EOP

EOP

PP

BENCHMARK #1

 A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD
VARIABLE R/W

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL
LL

LL

LLLL

LL LL

LL
LL
LL

LL

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

5.0'

9.0'

5.0'

9.0'

9.0'

10.0'

R15.0'
R15.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'R15.0'
R15.0'

R100.0'

R15.0'

R146.0'

R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'

R3.0' R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'
(TYP.)

12.0'

26.0'

9.0'20.0'

24.0'26.0'

20.0'

27.0'

5.0'

5.0'
9.0'

24.0' 20.0' 20.0' 26.0' 20.0'

20.0'

20.0'
26.0' 20.0' 20.0'

9.0'

9.0'

4.0'

5.7'

5.0'

20.0'

5.0'

4.0' 4.0'

9.0'9.0'

10.0' 8.1'

4.0'

15

8

26

22

12

8

10

12

14.5'

3.0'

8.0'

28.5'

FUTURE 40' BUILDING SETBACK

M
AIL PARKING

LEASING

CLUBHOUSE

FITNESS

PICKLE BALL
COURTS

MAIL
ROOM

AMENITY AREA
SEE LA PLANS FOR DETAILED

AMENITY AREA PLANS

GARAGES
G6

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

WETLAND

12.0' 16.0'

R25.0' R8.0'

R25.0'
R173.9'

5.0' 11.0'
9.0'

5.0'

10.0'

20.0'

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
02

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
01

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
03

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
02

MATCHLINE C 406

MATCHLINE C 402

10.0'

5.0'

2

20

20

20

4

4

2

2

3

3

6

17

13

13

9

8

14

5

13

20

10

10

10

10

10

10

15

1

2

5

520 5

20

5

3

12 12

12 12

1
12

2 34

12

12

21

16

17 17

17

24

17

17

17

17

18

19

19 19 19

15

16

17

1
1

1 1
1

14

10
2

2

5

22

22

22

22

SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS
FOR LIGHTING DETAILS

18

8

9

1

7

FEATHER CURB AT GATE

FEATHER CURB AT GATE

5

1

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
32

05
01

3_
TT

R
ES

 @
 P

oo
le

r\C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
 4

00
 - 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

  C
 4

02
 E

N
LA

R
G

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

   
M

ar
 2

7,
 2

02
4 

 4
:4

5p
m

   
by

: c
hr

is
to

ph
er

.ja
m

es

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000073900

TITLE

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

3/27/2024

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
11

1 
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T 

C
IR

C
LE

, S
U

IT
E 

15
00

IN
D

IA
N

AP
O

LI
S,

 IN
 4

62
04

PH
O

N
E:

 4
63

.2
37

.3
26

9

TT
R

ES
 P

O
O

LE
R

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 @
 O

LD
 Q

U
AC

C
O

 R
O

AD
IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
, P

O
O

LE
R

 G
A 

31
32

2
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

09
 0

10
41

AD
D

EN
D

U
M

 C
20

24
-0

3-
27

R
W

1

C 402

SITE PLAN
(2 OF 7)

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

KEY MAP

C 401 C 402 C 403 C 404

C 407C 406C 405

NO
RT

H

SITE KEYNOTE LEGEND:
ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP (TYPE A, C 804)

ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP (TYPE B, C 804)

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN (3, C 808)

1

2

3

4

5

MONUMENT SIGN (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS
FOR DETAILS)

6

24" WIDE PAINTED WHITE STOP BAR (2, C 808)

7

ACCESSIBLE PAVEMENT MARKINGS (5, C 808)

PAINTED WHITE CROSSWALK STRIPING
(5' WIDE, 18" THICK , 4' OC) (8, C 808)

STOP SIGN (TYP.)  (1, C 808)

8

9

CALL BOX

10
6" SIDEWALK TURN DOWN (CURB W/
SIDEWALK) (C 807)

11
TRASH COMPACTOR AND ENCLOSURE (SEE
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS)

12 WHEEL STOP (TYP.)  (6, C 808)

13

14 FIRE HYDRANT (TYP.)  (W-04, C 800)

15
ACCESS GATE WITH "CLICK2ENTER"
FOR EMERGENCY ACCESS  (SEE
LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAILS)

16
1' WIDE HEAVY DUTY GATE
CONCRETE CHANNEL  (C 807)

17
6" REVEAL HEADER CURB (MONOLITHIC
STRAIGHT CURB C 807)

19 TABLE TOP CROSSWALK (7, C 808)

18 STRAIGHT BACK CURB AND GUTTER (C 807)

20 CONCRETE SIDEWALK  (C 806)

TRANSFORMER PAD (PHASE 1 & 3, C 804)

21 ELECTRIC CHARGING STATION

22 FEATHER CURB (9, C 808)

23 "RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN (R3-5R)

24 BOLLARD (10, C 808)

1

1

1

1

amann
Polygon



Page 9 of 10 

EXHIBIT D  

Improvements 

 

 

  



SWIMMING POOL
2,047 SF

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

164.61'

R/W MARKER

PP

EOP

EOP

PP

BENCHMARK #1

 A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD
VARIABLE R/W

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL
LL

LL

LLLL

LL LL

LL
LL
LL

LL

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

5.0'

9.0'

5.0'

9.0'

9.0'

10.0'

R15.0'
R15.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'R15.0'
R15.0'

R100.0'

R15.0'

R146.0'

R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'

R3.0' R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'
(TYP.)

12.0'

26.0'

9.0'20.0'

24.0'26.0'

20.0'

27.0'

5.0'

5.0'
9.0'

24.0' 20.0' 20.0' 26.0' 20.0'

20.0'

20.0'
26.0' 20.0' 20.0'

9.0'

9.0'

4.0'

5.7'

5.0'

20.0'

5.0'

4.0' 4.0'

9.0'9.0'

10.0' 8.1'

4.0'

15

8

26

22

12

8

10

12

14.5'

3.0'

8.0'

28.5'

FUTURE 40' BUILDING SETBACK

M
AIL PARKING

LEASING

CLUBHOUSE

FITNESS

PICKLE BALL
COURTS

MAIL
ROOM

AMENITY AREA
SEE LA PLANS FOR DETAILED

AMENITY AREA PLANS

GARAGES
G6

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

WETLAND

12.0' 16.0'

R25.0' R8.0'

R25.0'
R173.9'

5.0' 11.0'
9.0'

5.0'

10.0'

20.0'

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
02

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
01

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
03

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
02

MATCHLINE C 406

MATCHLINE C 402

10.0'

5.0'

2

20

20

20

4

4

2

2

3

3

6

17

13

13

9

8

14

5

13

20

10

10

10

10

10

10

15

1

2

5

520 5

20

5

3

12 12

12 12

1
12

2 34

12

12

21

16

17 17

17

24

17

17

17

17

18

19

19 19 19

15

16

17

1
1

1 1
1

14

10
2

2

5

22

22

22

22

SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS
FOR LIGHTING DETAILS

18

8

9

1

7

FEATHER CURB AT GATE

FEATHER CURB AT GATE

5

1

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
32

05
01

3_
TT

R
ES

 @
 P

oo
le

r\C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
 4

00
 - 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

  C
 4

02
 E

N
LA

R
G

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

   
M

ar
 2

7,
 2

02
4 

 4
:4

5p
m

   
by

: c
hr

is
to

ph
er

.ja
m

es

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000073900

TITLE

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

3/27/2024

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
11

1 
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T 

C
IR

C
LE

, S
U

IT
E 

15
00

IN
D

IA
N

AP
O

LI
S,

 IN
 4

62
04

PH
O

N
E:

 4
63

.2
37

.3
26

9

TT
R

ES
 P

O
O

LE
R

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 @
 O

LD
 Q

U
AC

C
O

 R
O

AD
IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
, P

O
O

LE
R

 G
A 

31
32

2
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

09
 0

10
41

AD
D

EN
D

U
M

 C
20

24
-0

3-
27

R
W

1

C 402

SITE PLAN
(2 OF 7)

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

KEY MAP

C 401 C 402 C 403 C 404

C 407C 406C 405

NO
RT

H

SITE KEYNOTE LEGEND:
ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP (TYPE A, C 804)

ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP (TYPE B, C 804)

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN (3, C 808)

1

2

3

4

5

MONUMENT SIGN (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS
FOR DETAILS)

6

24" WIDE PAINTED WHITE STOP BAR (2, C 808)

7

ACCESSIBLE PAVEMENT MARKINGS (5, C 808)

PAINTED WHITE CROSSWALK STRIPING
(5' WIDE, 18" THICK , 4' OC) (8, C 808)

STOP SIGN (TYP.)  (1, C 808)

8

9

CALL BOX

10
6" SIDEWALK TURN DOWN (CURB W/
SIDEWALK) (C 807)

11
TRASH COMPACTOR AND ENCLOSURE (SEE
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS)

12 WHEEL STOP (TYP.)  (6, C 808)

13

14 FIRE HYDRANT (TYP.)  (W-04, C 800)

15
ACCESS GATE WITH "CLICK2ENTER"
FOR EMERGENCY ACCESS  (SEE
LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAILS)

16
1' WIDE HEAVY DUTY GATE
CONCRETE CHANNEL  (C 807)

17
6" REVEAL HEADER CURB (MONOLITHIC
STRAIGHT CURB C 807)

19 TABLE TOP CROSSWALK (7, C 808)

18 STRAIGHT BACK CURB AND GUTTER (C 807)

20 CONCRETE SIDEWALK  (C 806)

TRANSFORMER PAD (PHASE 1 & 3, C 804)

21 ELECTRIC CHARGING STATION

22 FEATHER CURB (9, C 808)

23 "RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN (R3-5R)

24 BOLLARD (10, C 808)

1

1

1

1



Page 10 of 10 

EXHIBIT E  

Encroachment Area 

 

 

 

 



SWIMMING POOL
2,047 SF

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

164.61'

R/W MARKER

PP

EOP

EOP

PP

BENCHMARK #1

 A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD
VARIABLE R/W

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL
LL

LL

LLLL

LL LL

LL
LL
LL

LL

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

5.0'

9.0'

5.0'

9.0'

9.0'

10.0'

R15.0'
R15.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'R15.0'
R15.0'

R100.0'

R15.0'

R146.0'

R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'

R3.0' R3.0'
(TYP.)

R3.0'
(TYP.)

12.0'

26.0'

9.0'20.0'

24.0'26.0'

20.0'

27.0'

5.0'

5.0'
9.0'

24.0' 20.0' 20.0' 26.0' 20.0'

20.0'

20.0'
26.0' 20.0' 20.0'

9.0'

9.0'

4.0'

5.7'

5.0'

20.0'

5.0'

4.0' 4.0'

9.0'9.0'

10.0' 8.1'

4.0'

15

8

26

22

12

8

10

12

14.5'

3.0'

8.0'

28.5'

FUTURE 40' BUILDING SETBACK

M
AIL PARKING

LEASING

CLUBHOUSE

FITNESS

PICKLE BALL
COURTS

MAIL
ROOM

AMENITY AREA
SEE LA PLANS FOR DETAILED

AMENITY AREA PLANS

GARAGES
G6

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

WETLAND

12.0' 16.0'

R25.0' R8.0'

R25.0'
R173.9'

5.0' 11.0'
9.0'

5.0'

10.0'

20.0'

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
02

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
01

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
03

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
C

 4
02

MATCHLINE C 406

MATCHLINE C 402

10.0'

5.0'

2

20

20

20

4

4

2

2

3

3

6

17

13

13

9

8

14

5

13

20

10

10

10

10

10

10

15

1

2

5

520 5

20

5

3

12 12

12 12

1
12

2 34

12

12

21

16

17 17

17

24

17

17

17

17

18

19

19 19 19

15

16

17

1
1

1 1
1

14

10
2

2

5

22

22

22

22

SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS
FOR LIGHTING DETAILS

18

8

9

1

7

FEATHER CURB AT GATE

FEATHER CURB AT GATE

5

1

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
32

05
01

3_
TT

R
ES

 @
 P

oo
le

r\C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
 4

00
 - 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

  C
 4

02
 E

N
LA

R
G

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

   
M

ar
 2

7,
 2

02
4 

 4
:4

5p
m

   
by

: c
hr

is
to

ph
er

.ja
m

es

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000073900

TITLE

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

3/27/2024

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
11

1 
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T 

C
IR

C
LE

, S
U

IT
E 

15
00

IN
D

IA
N

AP
O

LI
S,

 IN
 4

62
04

PH
O

N
E:

 4
63

.2
37

.3
26

9

TT
R

ES
 P

O
O

LE
R

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 @
 O

LD
 Q

U
AC

C
O

 R
O

AD
IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
, P

O
O

LE
R

 G
A 

31
32

2
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

09
 0

10
41

AD
D

EN
D

U
M

 C
20

24
-0

3-
27

R
W

1

C 402

SITE PLAN
(2 OF 7)

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

KEY MAP

C 401 C 402 C 403 C 404

C 407C 406C 405

NO
RT

H

SITE KEYNOTE LEGEND:
ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP (TYPE A, C 804)

ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP (TYPE B, C 804)

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN (3, C 808)

1

2

3

4

5

MONUMENT SIGN (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS
FOR DETAILS)

6

24" WIDE PAINTED WHITE STOP BAR (2, C 808)

7

ACCESSIBLE PAVEMENT MARKINGS (5, C 808)

PAINTED WHITE CROSSWALK STRIPING
(5' WIDE, 18" THICK , 4' OC) (8, C 808)

STOP SIGN (TYP.)  (1, C 808)

8

9

CALL BOX

10
6" SIDEWALK TURN DOWN (CURB W/
SIDEWALK) (C 807)

11
TRASH COMPACTOR AND ENCLOSURE (SEE
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS)

12 WHEEL STOP (TYP.)  (6, C 808)

13

14 FIRE HYDRANT (TYP.)  (W-04, C 800)

15
ACCESS GATE WITH "CLICK2ENTER"
FOR EMERGENCY ACCESS  (SEE
LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAILS)

16
1' WIDE HEAVY DUTY GATE
CONCRETE CHANNEL  (C 807)

17
6" REVEAL HEADER CURB (MONOLITHIC
STRAIGHT CURB C 807)

19 TABLE TOP CROSSWALK (7, C 808)

18 STRAIGHT BACK CURB AND GUTTER (C 807)

20 CONCRETE SIDEWALK  (C 806)

TRANSFORMER PAD (PHASE 1 & 3, C 804)

21 ELECTRIC CHARGING STATION

22 FEATHER CURB (9, C 808)

23 "RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN (R3-5R)

24 BOLLARD (10, C 808)

1

1

1

1

amann_1
Polygon


	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	A. 10U Basketball GRPA State Champions

	VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Millage Rate Public Hearing
	6A.1_City of Pooler_Public Notice_2024-07-10_Millage Rate Public Hearings_draft1
	6A.2_2024.07.10 Current Tax Digest and Five Year History of Levy
	6A.3_2024.05.23 Computation of Millage Rate Rollback
	6A.4_Property Tax FAQ's


	VII. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Meeting Minutes of July 15, 2024
	7A_City Council Meeting_2024-07-15_Minutes_draft

	B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of July 15,
	7B_City Council Executive Session Minutes of July 15, 2024

	C. Millage Rate Public Hearing Minutes of July 22, 20
	7C_City Council Meeting_2024-07-22_Public Hearing_Minutes_draft

	D. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for 
	7D_Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for Touch-a-Truck on February 22, 2025

	E. Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Main
	7E_Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk Bonds for Clear Lake, Phase 1A, 

	F. Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Main
	7F_Release of Performance Bond and Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk Bonds for Clear Lake, Phase 1B, Sub


	VIII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
	A. Ordinance O2024-07.B – To Amend Chapter 46 – Fire 
	8A_Ordinance O2024-07.B_To Amend Chapter 46 - Fire Prevention and Protection, Sections 7, 8, 9 (Knox)_draft_2024-07-18

	B. Proclamation for National Health Center Week
	8B_Proclamation for National Health Center Week


	IX. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse, Showroom,
	9A_Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse, Showroom, and Office at 1323 East US Highway 80 (Publ

	B. Variance Request for Pooler Crossroads, Lot 5, Cle
	9B_Variance Request for Pooler Crossroads, Lot 5, Clear Lake Reserve, Phase 1 (Clear Lake Vist

	C. Encroachment and Construction Agreement with TTRES
	9C_Encroachment and Construction Agreement with TTRES at POOLER GA, LLC


	X. PUBLIC COMMENT
	XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	XII. ADJOURNMENT

	Applicant Name: Daniel Hawker
	Applicant Phone: 678-684-6210
	Applicant Mailing Address: 350 Research Ct. Peachtree Corners GA 30092
	Applicant Email: dhawker@pec.plus
	Property Owner Name: Pooler Parkway of GA LLC Attn Roger Patel 
	Property Owner Phone: 912-348-3002
	Property Owner Mailing Address: 101 E. Marketplace Way Suite 600B Pooler, GA 31322
	Property Owner Email: Roger@lrphotels.com
	Contact Person Name: Daniel Hawker
	Contact Person Phone: 678-684-6210
	Contact Person Mailing Address: 350 Research Ct. Peachtree Corners GA 30092
	Contact Person Email: dhawker@pec.plus
	Location Address: 0 Pooler Crossroads Lot 5 Clear Lake Reserve Phase 1
	Text1: 51011F01005
	Current Zoning: R-3
	Current Use: Forested
	Name: Pittman Real Estate Holdings of Georgia, LLC
	Address: 7 Park of Commerce Way Savannah, GA
	Zip: 31405
	Name_2: Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC
	Address_2: 123 Canal Street, Suite 201 Pooler , GA
	Zip_2: 31322
	Name_3: LRP Development, LLC
	Address_3: 123 Canal Street, Suite 201 Pooler, GA
	Zip_3: 31322
	Name_4: Clear Lake (GA) Owner 1 LLC
	Address_4: 123 Canal Street, Suite 201 Pooler, GA
	Zip_4: 31322
	Applicant Name_2: Daniel Hawker
	Date: 7/3/2024
	Attestant Name: Chase Crouse
	Attestant Title: Project Manager
	Date_2: 7/3/2024
	Text53: Applicant requests that the minimum required parking per Appendix A, Article III, Section 5, (C) be reduced from 1.75 parking spaces per unit to 1.5 spaces per unit. This reduction is requested in order to provide additional green space throughout the community and reduce impervious surfaces. The accompanying site plan shows our proposed layout based on 1.5 spaces per unit
	Council may grant my variance only if my request meets two of these standards: Daniel Hawker
	Text4: 7/3/2024
	Zoning ActionAgenda Item: 
	Planning  Zoning Public HearingMeeting Date and Time: 
	City Council Public HearingMeeting Date and Time: 
	City Official Name: 
	Title: 
	Dollar Value: 
	Description of Gift 250: 
	City Official Name_2: 
	Title_2: 
	Dollar Value_2: 
	Description of Gift 250_2: 
	City Official Name_3: 
	Title_3: 
	Dollar Value_3: 
	Description of Gift 250_3: 
	Applicant Name_3: Daniel Hawker
	Date_3: 7/3/2024
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Off


